
 

 

County Buildings, Stafford 
DDI 01785 276901 

Please ask for Zach Simister 
Email: zachary.simister@staffordshire.gov.uk 

 

 

 
Planning Committee 
 

Thursday 4 August 2022 
10:00 

Council Chamber, County Buildings, Stafford 
 

The meeting will be webcast live which can be viewed at any time here:  
https://staffordshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 

John Tradewell 
Director of Corporate Services 

27 July 2022 

 

 

A G E N D A 
 
Please see attached notes 

 
1.  Apologies  

   
2.  Declarations of Interest in Accordance with Standing 

Order No. 16 

 

   

3.  Minutes of the meeting held on 9 June 2022 (Pages 3 - 6) 
   
4.  Applications for Permission  

   
 Reports of the Director for Economy, Infrastructure and Skills  

   
a)  Application by Aggregate Industries UK Ltd at 

Uttoxeter Quarry, Spath, Uttoxeter - 
SCC/21/0025/Full-ES 

(Pages 7 - 50) 

   
 The winning and working of sand and gravel with 

restoration to agriculture, water-based recreation and 

nature conservation, with the continued use of existing 
access, site offices, processing plant, silt lagoons and 

ancillary infrastructure.  

 

   

b)  Application by Aggregate Industries UK Ltd at 
Uttoxeter Quarry, Spath, Uttoxeter - 

SCC/21/0047/FULL-ES 

(Pages 51 - 86) 

   
 The importation and temporary storage of limestone 

scalpings with the erection and use of an aggregate 
washing plant. 

 



 

   
5.  Exclusion of the public  

   
 The Chairman to move:- 

 
“That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 

business which involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in the paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as amended) of 
the Local Government Act 1972 indicated below”. 

 

 
Part Two 

(All reports in this section are exempt) 
 

Nil 

 

   

 

Membership 

 

David Smith (Vice-
Chairman) 

Paul Snape 
Ian Lawson 

Jeremy Oates 
Mark Winnington 
(Chairman) 

Jak Abrahams 
Arshad Afsar 

Richard Cox 
 

John Francis 
Philip Hudson 

Tom Loughbrough-Rudd 
Robert Pritchard 

Mike Sutherland 
Jill Waring 
Johnny McMahon 

 

 

Notes for Members of the Press and Public 
 
Filming of Meetings 

 
Staffordshire County Council is defined as a Data Controller under the Data 

Protection Act 2018. The County Council has agreed that Public meetings should 
be the subject of live web transmission ‘webcasting’. Fixed cameras are located 

within meeting room for this purpose.  
 

The webcast will be live on the County Council’s website and recorded for 

subsequent play-back for 12 months. The recording will also be uploaded to 
YouTube. By entering the meeting room and using the seats around the meeting 

tables you are deemed to be consenting to being filmed and to the possible use 

of those images and sound recordings for the purpose of webcasting.  
 

If you have privacy concerns about the webcast or do not wish to have your 

image captured then please contact the Member and Democratic Services officer 
named at the top right of the agenda. 

 

 



 

 
Recording by Press and Public 

 
Recording (including by the use of social media) by the Press and Public is 

permitted from the public seating area provided it does not, in the opinion of 
the chairman, disrupt the meeting.  

 





Planning Committee Agenda Notes 
 

Note 1 

The County Council has in place a scheme to allow Public Speaking at meetings, 

whereby representations may be made direct to the Planning Committee on these 
items. 
 

The County Council’s rules governing this facility are contained in the Protocol on 
Making Representations Direct to the Planning Committee which can be found on the 

Staffordshire Web www.staffordshire.gov.uk (click on “Environment” click on the 
shortcut to the “Planning” click on “Planning Committee” and then click on “P lanning 
Committee – Public Speaking Protocol”). Alternatively, a copy of the Protocol may be 

obtained by contacting Member and Democratic Services on 01785 276901 or emailing 
desu@staffordshire.gov.uk 
 

Parties wishing to make oral representations must submit their request to Member and 
Democratic Services either by emailing desu@staffordshire.gov.uk, or by telephoning 
01785 276901 before 5.00 pm on the Monday preceding the date of the Planning 
Committee meeting (or the Friday preceding if the Monday is a Bank Holiday). 
 

Note 2 
 

Staffordshire County Council Policy on Requests for the 
Deferral of the Determination of Planning Applications 

 

1. The County Council will on receipt of a written request for the deferral of the 
determination of a planning application prior to its consideration by the Planning 

Committee accede to that request only where the following criteria are met:- 
 

(a) the request is received in writing no later than 12.00 noon on the day 

before the Committee meeting; and 
 

(b) the basis for the deferral request and all supporting information is set out 
in full (requests for extensions of time to enable the applicant to submit 
further information in support of the deferral will not be accepted); and 

 
(c) the deferral request will not lead to the determination of the application 

being delayed beyond the next suitable Planning Committee  
 

The only exception will be where the request proposes a significant amendment 

to the applications.  An outline of the nature of the intended amendment and an 
explanation of the reasons for making it must be submitted with the deferral 

request.  The full details of the amendment must be submitted within 28 days of 
the request being accepted by the Committee, failing which the Committee 
reserve the right to determine the application on the basis of the original 

submission as it stood before the applicant’s request was made. 
 

2. Under no circumstances will the County Council accept a second request for 
deferral of an application. 

 

3. The County Council will not object to applicants formally withdrawing applications 
before they are determined whether they are applications being considered for 

the first time or following an accepted deferral request. 

Page 1

Agenda Annex

http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/
mailto:desu@staffordshire.gov.uk
mailto:desu@staffordshire.gov.uk


Note 3 
 

Policy for Committee Site Visits 

 

1. Committee Site Visits should only take place where:- 
 
 (a) The visual verbal and written material is insufficient to convey a clear 

impression of the impacts and affects on the site and its surroundings. 
 

 (b) Specific impacts/effects such as landscape, visual amenity, highways and 
proximity to properties need to be inspected because of the site’s location, 
topography and/or relationship with other sites/facilities which cannot be 

addressed in text form. 
 

 (c) The proposals raise new or novel issues on site which need to be 
inspected. 

 

2. Site visits should not be undertaken simply at the request of the applicant, 
objectors or other interested parties whether expressed in writing or during public 

speaking. 
 
3. No site should be revisited within a period of two years since the last visit unless 

there are exceptional circumstances or changes since the last site visit. 
 
4. The arrangement and conduct of all visits should be in accordance with the 

Committee’s Site Visit Protocol, a copy of which can be found on the 
Staffordshire Web which was referred to earlier. 

 

 

Page 2



 

- 1 - 
 

Minutes of the Planning Committee Meeting held on 9 June 2022 
 

Present: Mark Winnington (Chairman) 
 

Attendance 

 

David Smith (Vice-
Chairman) 
Paul Snape 

Jeremy Oates 
Arshad Afsar 

Richard Cox 
 

Tom Loughbrough-Rudd 
Robert Pritchard 
Mike Sutherland 

Jill Waring 
Johnny McMahon 

 

 

Apologies: Ian Lawson, John Francis and Philip Hudson 
 
PART ONE 

 
2. Declarations of Interest in Accordance with Standing Order No. 

16 
 

There were no Declarations of Interest on this occasion. 
 

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 3 February 2022 
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 3 February 2022 be 

confirmed and signed by the Chairman. 
 

4. Appointment of Members to the Countryside and Rights of Way 
Panel 

 
RESOLVED – That (a) the following Members be appointed to the 

Countryside and Rights of Way Panel: 
 

 Mark Winnington (C) 

 David Smith (VC) 
 Jak Abrahams 

 Paul Snape 
 Jill Waring 

 Robert Pritchard 
 Phillip Hudson 

 
5. Applications for Permission 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

- 2 - 
 

6. Whiston Hall Golf Course, Black Lane, Whiston - SCC/21/0033 - 
Full 

 
The Committee received a presentation by the Case Officer on the proposed 

application for the remodelling of existing golf course to improve on-site 
water management, accessibility and player safety through the importation 

of engineering materials to regrade and reprofile part of the existing golf 
course, with the construction of new attenuation and irrigation ponds, 

erection of an associated pump house and proposed landscaping and tree 
planting. 
 

In accordance with the County Council ’s scheme for public speaking at 
meetings, the Committee received representations from Ms S Marjoram 

objecting to the application, Mr J Steele representing Kingsley Parish Council 
and Mr C Jarvis representing the applicant. 

 
The Committee noted that the officer recommendation was to refuse the 

application and raised concerns about the type of potential waste which may 
be used on the site should the application be approved. Officers explained 
that the planning permission would set the broad waste types and the 

Environmental Permit, regulated by the Environment Agency, would control 
the day-to-day operations, including the deposit of waste. 

 
Following a vote it was: 

 
RESOLVED – To REFUSE the application for remodelling of existing golf 

course to improve on-site water management, accessibility and player safety 
through the importation of engineering materials to regrade and reprofile 
part of the existing golf course, with the construction of new attenuation and 

irrigation ponds, erection of an associated pump house and proposed 
landscaping and tree planting at Whiston Hall Golf Club, Black Lane, Whiston 

for the reasons set out in the report. 
 

7. Betley Wastewater Treatment Works, Main Road, Betley - 
SCC/21/0038 - Full 

 
The Committee received a presentation by the Case Officer on the proposed 
application for the widening of existing access to Betley Wastewater 

Treatment Works and construction of passing places along the access track, 
including 23.5m of hedgerow removal and removal of Horse Chestnut (t4) 

within Betley Village Hall TP0 ref T80 if it cannot safely be retained. 
 

The Case Officer began their presentation by explaining that it had now been 
determined that there was no need to remove the Horse Chestnut tree. 

 

Page 4



 

- 3 - 
 

In accordance with the County Council’s scheme for public speaking at 
meetings, the Committee received representations from Ms A Drakakis-

Smith objecting to the application and Ms S Allen representing the applicant. 
 

At the request of the Chairman, Officers clarified the nature of the 
application, the permitted development works due to take place and the 

separate approval under delegated powers for kiosks at the site. 
 

Following a vote it was : 
 
RESOLVED – To PERMIT the application for widening of existing access to 

Betley Wastewater Treatment Works and construction of passing places 
along the access track, including 23.5m of hedgerow removal and removal of 

Horse Chestnut (t4) within Betley Village Hall TPO ref T80 if it cannot safely 
be retained at Betley Wastewater Treatment Works, Main Road, Betley 

subject to the conditions in the report. 
 

8. Planning, Policy and Development Control Team Annual Report 
 
The Committee received a report of the Director for Economy, Infrastructure 

and Skills on the planning development control team annual report over the 
period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022. 

 
The Committee were presented with details of the activities of the Planning 

Policy and Development Control team related to policy- making, 
development control performance against national and local targets and the 

staffing situation within the team.  
 
The Committee expressed their thanks to the Planning, Policy and 

Development team. 
 

RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

9. Exclusion of the public 
 

RESOLVED – That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following 
items of business which involve the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in the paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as amended) of the 

Local Government Act 1972 indicated below. 
 

10. Planning Regulation - Performance and Delegated Decisions 
Report 

 
The Committee received a report of the Director for Economy, Infrastructure 

and Skills on the work of the Planning Regulation team including details of 
the notices served from 1 January 2020 to 1 May 2022.  
 

Page 5



 

- 4 - 
 

RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

 
 

 
Chairman 

 

Page 6



  

 
 

Local Member 

Councillor P.E.B. Atkins, OBE 
and 

Councillor P.A. Hudson 

Uttoxeter Rural 
 

Uttoxeter Town 
 
Planning Committee  04 August 2022 

Minerals County Matter  

Application No (District):  SCC/21/0025/FULL-ES (East Staffordshire)  

Applicant: Aggregate Industries UK Limited 

Description Northern extension to Uttoxeter Quarry for the 
winning and working of sand and gravel with 
restoration to agriculture, water-based recreation 
and nature conservation, with the continued use 
of existing access, site offices, processing plant, 
silt lagoons and ancillary infrastructure 

Location: Uttoxeter Quarry, Spath, Uttoxeter, Staffordshire, 
ST14 5AP 

Background/ Introduction  

1. Uttoxeter Quarry has been operating under a series of permissions since 
2001 and the current planning permission required the site to cease mineral 
extraction by 30 November 2016. However, the Planning Committee has 
approved an application to extend the cessation date to 30 November 2023, 
pending the completion of a Section 106 Legal Agreement (Section 106). The 
Section 106 is nearing completion, meanwhile sand and gravel extraction has 
continued and is expected to cease by the end of 2022. There is also a 
separate report on this Committee meeting agenda to consider a planning 
application to import and wash limestone scalpings (ref.  SCC/21/0047/FULL-
ES).  For more details see ‘Relevant Planning History’ below. 

2. This application is seeking planning permission to extend mineral extraction 
to the north of the quarry within an area allocated in the Minerals Local Plan. 
The applicant anticipates that if the extension is granted permission, then 
mineral extraction at Uttoxeter Quarry would cease by the end of 2025. 

Site and Surroundings  

3. Uttoxeter Quarry is approximately 1.5 kilometres north of Uttoxeter and one 
kilometre to the east of Stramshall village. The eastern boundary of the 
quarry is formed by the River Dove which in this location forms the boundary 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4(a)

https://planning.agileapplications.co.uk/staffordshire/application-details/28360
https://planning.agileapplications.co.uk/staffordshire/application-details/28386
https://planning.agileapplications.co.uk/staffordshire/application-details/28386


  

 
 

between the counties of Staffordshire and Derbyshire. 

4. Mineral processing takes place in the western part of the quarry and access 
to the quarry is off the B5030 Rocester Road that leads to the A50. Near to 
the processing plant and stockpiling area are residential properties, namely 
Riversmede to the north of the quarry entrance, and Spath Farm and Spath 
Cottage lying to the south of the entrance. 

5. The planning application includes existing operational parts of Uttoxeter 
Quarry as well as the proposed extension area to the north e.g., processing 
plant and silt lagoons. The total planning application site area amounts to 
approximately 166 hectares (ha), 45 ha of which comprises the proposed 
extension area (refer to Plan 1 accompanying this report). 

 

Figure 1: Site Location showing extent of northern extension in green. 

6. The extension area comprises primarily of semi-improved grasslands and 

Page 8



  

 
 

arable fields with associated hedgerows. Broad-leaved woodland, scattered 
trees, tall hedges with ditches and a stream also lie within this area. The 
closest properties to the proposed extension area are in the hamlet of 
Crakemarsh, the closest of which, Beningbrough House, is approximately 75 
metres to the west. 

Summary of Proposals  

7. The development would consist of the following key elements: 

Winning and working of 0.99 million tonnes of sand and gravel 

8. It is proposed to win and work 0.99 million tonnes of sand and gravel from 
the proposed extension area following the exhaustion of reserves remaining 
within the current permitted area, anticipated by the end of this year. Based 
on a maximum permitted output of 400,000 tonnes per annum, all mineral 
within the extension area would be extracted within 3 years.  

9. Sand and gravel would be processed at the existing processing plant and 
transported to the plant by dump trucks. The haul road would cross the River 
Tean in the south of the extension area via a new bailey bridge. 

10. Lorries exporting sand and gravel would continue to use the existing access 
onto the public highway. No changes are proposed to the number of 
permitted lorry movements associated with the quarry. Based on figures 
recorded in 2019 (pre-pandemic), there were an average of 64 HGV 
departures from the quarry (128 HGV movements per day) and a maximum 
number of HGV departures of 96 (a total of 192 movements). This is within 
the limits imposed by the current permission. 

11. It is anticipated that 6% of the mineral extracted, would be separated as silt 
and this material would be deposited in existing lagoons to the east of the 
processing plant site. No additional lagoon capacity is required for the 
disposal of silt. 

12. To enable mineral production to be maintained during times of flooding, it is 
proposed to develop two concurrent extraction areas within the extension 
area. Phases 1A to 4A are in the southern part of the extension area 
adjacent to the Rivers Dove and Tean, whilst Phases 1B to 4B are located on 
higher ground within the northern part of the extension area (refer to Plan 2 
accompanying this report). Soils and overburden would be progressively 
removed as extraction develops through the phases. 

Page 9



  

 
 

 

Figure 2: Extract from Proposals Plan showing two extraction areas and phasing. 

13. Soils and overburden which are removed (stripped) from the initial working 
areas (Phases 1A and 1B) would be placed in temporary soil storage bunds 
which would be grass seeded and maintained. The storage mounds would not 
exceed 5m in height and would provide a storage capacity of approximately 
45,000m3 each. The material from subsequent soil and overburden stripping 
would then be placed into the most recently worked-out void to allow for the 
progressive restoration of the site. 

Page 10



  

 
 

14. No changes are proposed to the current permitted hours of operation for 
extractive, processing, or restoration operations. 

Restoration of the extension area  

15. The overall objective of the restoration scheme is to establish a mix of 
agricultural land and wildlife habitats associated with the flood plain of the 
River Dove and River Tean, which is sustainable in respect of its 
management and potential for Biodiversity Net Gain (refer to Plan 3 
accompanying this report). 

 

Figure 3: Extract from Restoration Concept Plan.  

16. It is anticipated that all mineral extraction and restoration works would be 
completed by the end of 2026.  

Page 11



  

 
 

17. It is proposed that the site would be progressively restored to create three 
lakes, two situated in the northern part of the extension area and one 
situated in the southern part. The restoration of the northern part of the 
extension area would result in the creation of amenity/ recreation lakes 
surrounded by species rich grassland with sections of new native woodland 
on the eastern boundary. The restoration of the southern part of the 
extension area would create one large lake with soils and overburden used to 
create areas of shallows/ reedbeds in the lake corners. Agricultural grassland 
would surround the southern lake and extend northwards. Field boundaries 
would be created to separate the agricultural grassland in the south from the 
species-rich grassland further north in the extension area. 

 

Figure 4: Table 8.6 extracted from Environmental Statement listing the 
habitat to be created through restoration works. 

18. Following the cessation of mineral extraction and processing, and as part of 
the final phase of restoration, the processing plant, site offices and internal 
access roads would be removed, and the land restored. 

19. The application is accompanied by a large number of documents and plans 
including: 

• Planning Statement 

• Environmental Statement 

• Technical Summary of Environmental Statement 

• Appendices to Environmental Statement including: 

o Transport Assessment 

o Preliminary Ecological Appraisal Report 

o Biodiversity Net Gain assessment 

o Protected Species Survey Reports 

Page 12



  

 
 

o Arboricultural Survey Report 

o Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment 

o Noise Impact Assessment 

o Dust and Air Quality Impact Assessment 

o Hydrogeological Impact Assessment and Flood Risk Assessment 

o Geomorphological assessment 

o Cultural Heritage Assessment 

o Outline Archaeological Mitigation Strategy 

o Soil Resources and Agricultural Quality of Land Report 

o Stability Report 

The Applicant’s Case 

20. The extraction of sand and gravel from the proposed extension area would 
provide a steady supply of good quality aggregate which would be suitable 
for use in concrete production and other construction products. Given the 
significant level of construction and infrastructure projects planned for the 
Midlands region within the short and medium term (including HS2), the 
mineral resource identified within the extension area is considered to have 
significant environmental and economic value. It is considered by the 
applicant that the proposal for an extension to Uttoxeter Quarry accords with 
both national and local planning policy. 

21. The site operations and management procedures at the quarry are well 
established and do not give rise to unacceptable effects on the environment 
or local amenity. The management and mitigation measures that are 
currently in place at the quarry would continue to be implemented within the 
extension area. 

Relevant Planning History 

22. Details of relevant planning permissions and other planning decisions are 
listed as follows: 
 

• ES.23992/01 dated 5 June 2000 permitted the winning and working of 
sand and gravel (4.8 million tonnes of sand and gravel over a 12 year 
period). 

• ES.08/02/524 M dated 31 July 2009 permitted an extension to extract 
200,000 tonnes of sand and gravel within 12 months of commencement 

Page 13

https://apps2.staffordshire.gov.uk/scc/cpland/Details.aspx?applicationID=101094
https://apps2.staffordshire.gov.uk/scc/cpland/Details.aspx?applicationID=114927


  

 
 

with restoration to a community recreational use (cricket ground 
facility).  This extension was worked in 2010 and restored in 2011. 

• ES.09/05/524 M dated 23 December 2010 permitted the 'Dove' 
extension to extract (1.6 million tonnes of sand and gravel up to 30 
November 2016) with restoration to agriculture and water-based 
recreation and nature conservation. 

• ES.11/13/524 MW dated 13 December 2011 permitted the variation of 
conditions 1, 2, 8, 9, 10, 32, 38, 39 and 42 of permission ref 
ES.09/05/524 M to alter the sequence of phased extraction. 

• ES.16/15/524 MW dated 11 August 2016 to vary conditions 1, 2, 8, 9, 
10, 32, 38, 39 and 42 of permission ref. ES.11/13/524 MW: to alter the 
sequence of phased extraction; and to revise the date for cessation of 
mineral extraction from 30 November 2016 to 30 November 2023 and 
restoration from 30 November 2018 to 30 November 2025. This 
application was approved on 1 December 2016, but permission remains 
to be issued pending completion of a Section 106 legal agreement. 

• SCC/21/0047/FULL-ES dated 15 October 2021 for the importation and 
temporary storage of limestone scalpings with the erection and use of 
an aggregate washing plant. This application is to be reported to the 
Planning Committee at the same meeting as this report. 

23. A Section 106 legal agreement (Section 106) dated 1 June 2000 
accompanied the permission ref: ES.23992/01 and this included 
undertakings for off-site highway works in association with creation of an 
access onto the B5030 and extended aftercare for nature conservation 
afteruses. 

24. An additional Section 106 has been drafted and is nearing completion in 
connection with the approval of the 2016 application ref: ES.16/15/524 MW.  
This agreement will require the quarry operator to pay for works associated 
with the development of football pitches on land that has been quarried and 
now restored; continuation of the arrangements for the site liaison 
committee; provision of extended aftercare; and provision of a restoration 
guarantee. 

Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) 

25. The findings of the ES (and the environmental information subsequently 
received) are summarised in Appendix 1. 

Findings of Consultations 

Internal 

26. Environmental Advice Team (EAT) – no objections, subject to conditions 

Page 14

https://apps2.staffordshire.gov.uk/scc/cpland/Details.aspx?applicationID=119006
https://apps2.staffordshire.gov.uk/scc/cpland/Details.aspx?applicationID=128108
https://planning.agileapplications.co.uk/staffordshire/application-details/20342
https://planning.agileapplications.co.uk/staffordshire/application-details/28386


  

 
 

to require relocation of large sections of all felled veteran and over-mature 
timber to the fringes of the site where they will remain undisturbed; 
provision of a Construction Environmental Management Plan for biodiversity; 
an Invasive Species Management Plan; a programme of archaeological work 
implemented in accordance with an approved Outline Archaeological 
Mitigation Strategy; a Habitat and Landscape Management Plan; prior to 
seeding of species-rich grassland areas, submission of soil test results for 
approval; and detailed restoration plans to include natural features on 
internal watercourses and River Tean, where hydrological modelling allows. 

27. The EAT reviewed the submitted further information and welcome proposals 
for early planting, and provision for toads and bats as part of a proposed 
Construction Environmental Management Plan for biodiversity. 

28. Highways Development Control (on behalf of the Highways Authority) 
(HA) – no objections subject to maintaining the condition to limit the output 
of the quarry. 

29. The HA comment that because the traffic would be the same as at present, 
there will not be a severe impact on highway capacity. The impact of this 
level of traffic on highway safety, and the layout of the site access have all 
been assessed during the consideration of previous applications on the site 
and found to be acceptable. 

30. Regarding the assessment of stability on the public highway, the HA conclude 
that the information submitted with the application is adequate. A review 
prepared by the applicant concludes that the risk of slope failure is negligible, 
and it will be maintained as such, with no significant impact on 3rd party 
property, land or the general public over the life of the proposed 
development. The risk of settlement associated with dewatering close to the 
B5030 is also considered negligible. 

31. Flood Risk Management Team (on behalf of the Lead Local Flood 
Authority) – no objections subject to conditions relating to compliance with 
approved documents; measures to control surface water are in place as part 
of any quarrying works; and provision of a detailed management and 
maintenance plan for the restoration ponds. 

32. Planning Regulation Team – confirm that they have no comments. 

33. County Council’s Noise Engineer - no objection on noise grounds subject 
to the implementation of the proposed mitigation measures which include the 
provision of a ‘wall’ of straw bales 3 metres in height 150 metres in length on 
the western boundary of the site; and vehicles being fitted with non-intrusive 
reversing/ warning systems. 

External 

34. East Staffordshire Borough Council (Planning) - no objections.  

Page 15



  

 
 

35. East Staffordshire Borough Council (Environmental Health) – no 
objections subject to a condition requiring review of existing dust mitigation 
measures. The Environmental Protection Officer confirms that he is satisfied 
with the findings of the environmental statement and as long as the 
mitigation measures proposed both in terms of noise and dust control are 
followed and the relevant conditions in the site’s extant planning permission 
are directly transferrable, the risk of adverse impacts to nearby residents can 
be minimised. 

36. Uttoxeter Rural Parish Council – commented that there needs to be a 
proper, real and tangible community benefit from the extension, i.e. 
completion of the sports hub development, water sport development, 
footpath accessibility and car parking.  

37. Uttoxeter Town Council – commented that: (i) The Planning Authority 
should ensure that steps are taken to monitor the proposals in accordance 
with the proposals to safeguarding biodiversity; and (ii) The works should be 
monitored closely by the Planning Authority as the quarry develops. 

38. Canal and River Trust – advised that the Caldon and Uttoxeter Canals 
Trust be consulted as they are working on the restoration of the Uttoxeter 
Canal through the Churnet Valley and the creation of a route back toward 
Uttoxeter.  

39. Caldon and Uttoxeter Canals Trust - supports this development proposal 
and would like to be contacted about future master planning of the quarry 
site in order that inland waterway and boating use can be considered and 
allowed for in the future. The applicant has been made aware of the Trust’s 
interest in the proposal. 

40. Environment Agency (EA) – currently have a holding objection on the 
grounds that the proposal does not adequately assess the flood risks posed 
by the development in terms of the effect of soil storage mounds placed in 
the flood plain; and the approach to maintaining stand-offs between the 
River Dove and proposed mineral working areas. Since confirming this 
objection, the applicant has met with the EA and additional information has 
been submitted to clarify the proposals and address the grounds for 
objection. A response is expected from the EA, and this will be reported 
verbally to the Planning Committee. 

41. Comments are also made in relation to opportunities for restoration 
proposals including the enhancement of river corridor habitat and 
contributing towards Water Framework Directives. In addition, the EA require 
continued groundwater monitoring including monitoring of water levels in 
Crakemarsh Pond which is to the west of the proposed extension and outwith 
the application site. In response to groundwater monitoring requirements, 
the applicant has confirmed that all groundwater monitoring as explained in 
the Hydrogeological Impact Assessment would continue and trigger levels 

Page 16



  

 
 

would be established prior to commencement of extraction within the 
proposed extension area. 

42. The Forestry Commission – no comments but refer to standard guidance 
relating to the protection of ancient woodlands as the south-eastern part of 
the extension is within an ancient woodland consultation zone. 

43. Historic England (HE) – no objection. HE recommends that the advice of 
the County Archaeologist should be implemented in full, to ensure that the 
archaeological evaluation and subsequent mitigation work is managed 
effectively and appropriately. 

44. National Highways – no objection subject to conditions to maintain the 
current limits on the mineral exported from the quarry and the number HGV 
movements associated with the export of mineral. 

45. National Air Transport Service - no objection. 

46. Natural England – no objection.  

47. Ramblers’ Association (RA) – commented on the impact on three 
footpaths. Regarding proposed restoration, the repositioned footpaths around 
the periphery of the site is very welcome and will provide a new circular 
route around the proposed lakes. Currently, there is no link for footpath 31 
across the River Dove to another footpath in Derbyshire which is directly 
opposite, and the RA ask whether a footbridge could be provided. 

48. Severn Trent Water Limited (STWL) – no objection. STWL advise that 
there is a public pressurised sewer located within the site. Public sewers have 
statutory protection and may not be built close to, directly over or be 
diverted without consent. The applicant is advised to contact STWL to discuss 
the proposals. [The applicant proposes that the sewer pipe which runs in a 
generally north to south direction through the northern / north-western part 
of the extension area would be removed or diverted under processes 
separate to planning control]. 

49. Western Power Distribution – provided information relating to the 
location of a 33kV overhead electric line within the southern part of the 
extension area.  [The applicant has confirmed that it would be necessary to 
divert this pole mounted overhead line.] 

Publicity and Representations 

50. Site notice:  YES         Press notice:  YES 

51. 28 neighbour notification letters were sent out and one representation has 
been received relevant to the application.  The concerns raised in the 
representation are summarised below: 

Page 17



  

 
 

a) Use of straw bales as a noise and visual reduction barrier. There are 
concerns about the barrier’s durability; creation of a fire hazard; health 
and safety hazard for users of the diverted footpath; and vermin. 

b) As an alternative to the straw bales, it is suggested that a temporary 
soil bund should be formed. 

c) It is requested that the Planning Committee challenge the timescale of 
the proposed extension as it seems highly unlikely that 30 months is 
either feasible or achievable. It is now 20 years on from when the 
quarry first started excavating. 

d) Further loss of more hedges and trees will be devasting to all wildlife 
species. 

e) What consideration has been given to those who use septic tank 
drainage and may find their run-off fields continually below the water 
table level and flooded? [In respect of this issue, the applicant considers 
that the proposal would not be a risk. The relevant issue that has been 
considered is the effect of dewatering excavations and its impact on 
causing water levels to fall, although not a cause for objection. Refer to 
comments from the Highways Authority and Environment Agency for 
more details]. 

52. In addition, a representation was also received from one of the two local 
Members who commented as follows: 

a) There is a need to divert the existing pole mounted overhead 33kV 
electricity cables which cross the southern part of the extension area, 
and a pressurised sewer pipe runs in a generally north to south direction 
through the northern/ north-western part of the extension area. 

b) The site is in the floodplain and any works on the lower Dove flood plain 
must be carefully planned to lower the risk of flooding on other land 
adjacent, above and below the site. There has already been a breach at 
the existing quarry site causing damage to crop on the opposite side of 
the river. 

c) The after use of the quarry as a nature reserve and sports hub must not 
be hindered by any works attached to this application. The original 
quarry was supposed to be a short-lived works finished "by the end of 
the century" and the local community need to see something for their 
benefit as soon as is possible. 

d) There is a wood on the site which should be retained and trees which 
have to be cut down should be replaced. 

e) If the B5030 quarry access is to remain after the excavations are ended 
the aggregate company will not have the cost of its removal as in the 

Page 18



  

 
 

original application. This gain to the operator should go towards the 
afteruse of the quarry site and be legally registered. 

53. The applicant submitted further information in relation to the Environmental 
Statement to address issues raised during the initial consultation and this 
further information was publicised in accordance with regulation 25 of the 
Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 
2017.  As well as posting additional site notices and advertising in the press, 
neighbour notification letters were sent. No further representations were 
received from members of the public. 

The development plan policies (and proposals) and the other 
material planning considerations relevant to this decision 

54. National Planning Practice Guidance – Determining planning application - 
How must decisions on applications for planning permission be made? 
explains that:  

‘To the extent that development plan policies are material to an 
application for planning permission the decision must be taken in 
accordance with the development plan unless there are material 
considerations that indicate otherwise. 

The National Planning Policy Framework represents up-to-date 
government planning policy and is a material consideration that must 
be taken into account where it is relevant to a planning application or 
appeal. This includes the presumption in favour of development found 
at paragraph 11 [not 14 as stated] of the [National Planning Policy] 
Framework. If decision takers choose not to follow the National 
Planning Policy Framework, where it is a material consideration, clear 
and convincing reasons for doing so are needed.’ 

55. Appendix 2 lists the development plan policies (and proposals) and the other 
material planning considerations, relevant to this decision. 

Observations 

56. Having given careful consideration to the application, environmental and 
other information, including the environmental information subsequently 
received, consultee comments and the representation received, the relevant 
development plan policies and the other material considerations, referred to 
above, the key issues are considered to be: 

• Mineral planning policy and other material planning considerations. 

• Mineral Local Plan development considerations. 

• Other matters raised by consultees or in representations. 

Page 19

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/571/regulation/25/made
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/determining-a-planning-application#how-decisions-on-applications
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/2-achieving-sustainable-development
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/2-achieving-sustainable-development


  

 
 

• Need for the Section 106 Legal Agreement 

Mineral planning policy and other material planning considerations 

57. Both national and local planning policies recognise the importance of 
minerals for sustainable economic growth. The National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) contains specific mineral planning policy guidance and 
provides general planning policy guidance which is underpinned by a 
presumption in favour of sustainable development (Section 2). Paragraph 
211 of the NPPF explains that: 

 
‘When determining planning applications, great weight should be given 
to the benefits of mineral extraction, including to the economy.’ 
 

58. Policy 1 of the Minerals Local Plan (MLP) for Staffordshire sets out how 
provision will be made for sand and gravel in the county up to the end of 
2030 based on maintaining a landbank of at least 7 years of permitted 
reserves to support a level of provision of 5 million tonnes per annum 
(Mtpa); and refers to 11 proposals for the extension of quarries.  One of 
these proposals involves the land subject of this application (refer to Inset 
Map 3 in appendix 1 to the MLP appendices). 

 
59. Policy 1.3 of the MLP requires that: 
 

‘Planning permission to extend a site will normally be conditioned so 
that the extension area can only be worked following cessation of 
mineral working within the existing site unless it has been demonstrated 
that there are operational reasons why this is not practicable.’ 

 
60. Footnote 73 to paragraph 213 (f) of the NPPF which relates to maintaining 

landbanks of at least 7 years for sand and gravel states that: 
 

‘Longer periods may be appropriate for landbanks of aggregate minerals 
to take account of the need to supply a range of types of aggregates, 
locations of permitted reserves relative to markets, and productive 
capacity of permitted sites.’ 

 
61.  Commentary:  As explained in the Introduction earlier, the current planning 

permission required the site to cease mineral extraction by 30 November 
2016. However, the Planning Committee has approved an application to 
extend the cessation date to 30 November 2023, pending the completion of 
a Section 106 Legal Agreement (‘the 2016 Section 106’). The 2016 Section 
106 is nearing completion, meanwhile sand and gravel extraction has 
continued and is expected to cease by the end of 2022.  Therefore, the 
recommendation is that the 2016 Section 106 should be completed so that 
the planning permission can be issued before the permission for the 
extension is issued. 

 

Page 20

https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/environment/planning/policy/mineralslocalplan/Documents/The-Appendices.PDF


  

 
 

62. The application site is situated within land allocated in the MLP as shown on 
Plan 1 to this report and sand and gravel to be worked from this allocation is 
expected to contribute to the provision of sand and gravel aggregates within 
the county over the period up to 2030. 

 
63. The most up to date assessment of the sand and gravel landbank in 

Staffordshire indicates that the size of the landbank was sufficient for 11.8 
years as of 1 January 2021, based on a level of provision of 5 million tonnes 
per year as defined in the MLP, (using data from the West Midlands 
Aggregate Working Party Survey). 

 
64. While there is no current need for additional reserves to maintain the 

county’s sand and gravel landbank, the proposed extension would maintain 
production at the quarry following the exhaustion of the quarry’s permitted 
reserves which is anticipated to be later this year. The proposal, therefore, 
would accord with Policy 1.3 of the MLP; and the guidance of footnote 73 to 
paragraph 213 (f) of the NPPF by maintaining the productive capacity of a 
permitted site. 

 
65. Conclusion:  Having regard to the mineral planning policies and other 

material planning considerations referred to above, it is reasonable to 
conclude that the proposal is acceptable in principle given that it would 
maintain the provision of sand and gravel from a site identified in the MLP. 

Mineral Local Plan development considerations 

66. Policy 1.2 of the MLP requires that: 
 

‘Any proposals to develop the allocated extension sites will only be 
supported where it has been demonstrated that they accord with the 
Plan policies, including Policy 4 and address the development 
considerations listed in appendix 1.’ 

 
67. Policy 4.3 of the Minerals Local Plan states that: 
 

‘Having assessed the impacts of the proposals for mineral development 
and the mitigation and/ or compensatory measures, permission will only 
be granted where it has been demonstrated that there are no 
unacceptable adverse impacts on human health, general amenity and 
the natural and historic environment, or the material planning benefits 
of the proposals outweigh the material planning objections.’ 

 
68. In accordance with policy 1.2 of the MLP, it is necessary to consider whether 

the submitted proposals address the development considerations identified 
for the allocation as set out in Appendix 1.  The table below summarises how 
these considerations have been addressed by the applicant and considered 
by consultees. 

 

Page 21



  

 
 

Development considerations 
for the Uttoxeter North 
allocation 

Addressed in the application/ 
environmental statement (ES) 
by: 

Impacts on landscape character 
should be addressed in part by 
retention of landscape buffers 
along B5030. Retention of visually 
significant vegetation will assist. 

As shown on the Phase 1 Working 
and Restoration Plan, proposals 
include strengthening the existing 
boundary hedge along the B5030 
and for Phases 1 and 2 
maintaining a straw bale barrier 
that would screen views of the 
working areas in the northern part 
of the extension area. The 
proposals also include retention of 
a woodland in the northern part of 
the extension area as well as 
blocks of trees along the Rivers 
Dove and Tean. Hedgelines would 
also be retained along the western 
boundary of the southern part of 
the extension area. No objections 
are raised by the County Council’s 
Environment Advice Team.  The 
concerns raised by a resident 
about the proposed straw bale 
barrier are considered below. 
 

There are three Grade II heritage 
assets that could be impacted by 
this allocation. Developers will 
need to ensure that the 
significance of these features and 
their settings is protected and 
conserved. 

Section 13 of the ES considers the 
impact of the proposals on three 
Grade II listed buildings within 
1km of the application site. No 
adverse effects on these historical 
assets are identified. No objections 
are raised by the County Council’s 
Environment Advice Team or 
Historic England to the findings of 
the ES. 
 

Historic features associated with 
former flood meadows will need to 
be recorded before soil stripping, 
and should ensure that there are 
no indirect adverse impacts on the 
scheduled Dove Bridge, by 
affecting flow rates in the river and 
changing siltation/ erosion patterns  
downstream. 

Section 13 of the ES considers the 
impact of the proposals on historic 
ridge and furrow and flood 
meadows. A mitigation strategy 
for the ridge and furrow (and 
possible remains of water 
meadows) is proposed which 
would involve further survey work 
and trial excavations as set out in 
an approved Outline 

Page 22



  

 
 

Development considerations 
for the Uttoxeter North 
allocation 

Addressed in the application/ 
environmental statement (ES) 
by: 
Archaeological Mitigation Strategy. 
The Flood Risk Assessment 
assesses that the proposals will 
not change the course of flow 
dynamics of the river other than 
some positive effects due to the 
increase in flood storage and 
therefore, there should be no 
negative impact on the bridge. 
No objections are raised by the 
County Council’s Environment 
Advice Team. Historic England 
confirm they are satisfied that 
there will be limited impact on the 
Scheduled Dove Bridge. 
 

Significant progress with the 
completion of restoration works 
within the existing quarry should 
be achieved prior to 
commencement of quarrying 
within the allocation. 

Approval of application 
ES.16/15/524 MW required that 
restoration of the current quarry 
be completed by November 2025. 
The submitted plan ‘Projected 
Restoration Timescales’ indicates 
that most of the site except the 
plant site would be completed by 
the end of this year. 
Concerns about restoration 
timescales are considered below. 
 

Proximity to sensitive properties to 
the west and south of the site 
needs to be considered. 

The potential for amenity effects 
on properties to the west and 
south of the site has been 
considered within Technical 
Appendices 9 (Landscape), 10 
(Noise) and 11 (Dust and Air 
Quality).  
Subject to conditions, no 
objections are raised by the 
Council’s Noise Engineer or the 
Borough Council’s Environmental 
Health Officer. 

The adjacent Site of Biological 
Importance supports UK habitat of 
principal importance and relies on 
the hydrological regime which 

Crakemarsh Pool SBI lies to the 
west of the site, west of the 
B5030, and comprises a fishing 
pool with emergent and 

Page 23



  

 
 

Development considerations 
for the Uttoxeter North 
allocation 

Addressed in the application/ 
environmental statement (ES) 
by: 

should be maintained. submerged vegetation. The 
potential for environmental 
effects, including hydrological 
effects arising from quarry 
dewatering, is considered in both 
Technical Appendix 8.1 
(Preliminary Ecological Appraisal) 
and Technical Appendix 12.1 
(Hydrogeological Impact 
Assessment and Flood Risk 
Assessment). 
Subject to the proposed mitigation 
for monitoring water levels, no 
objections are raised by the 
County Council’s Environment 
Advice Team or the Environment 
Agency. 

Restoration proposals should 
include opportunities to provide 
enhanced sport and recreational 
facilities as proposed in the 
Borough’s Local Plan 

Proposals for the provision of 
sports pitches are part of 
proposals associated with 
application ref: ES.16/15/524 MW 
on previously quarried land to the 
north of the River Tean. The 
delivery of this scheme is subject 
to undertakings associated with a 
proposed Section 106 Legal 
Agreement and involves the 
Staffordshire Football Association. 

There is also a high risk of best & 
most versatile land being present, 
so this land should be considered 
in designing the restoration of the 
site. 

Technical Appendix 14 ‘Soils and 
Agricultural Quality of Land at 
Crakemarsh, Uttoxeter’ indicates 
that best and most versatile land 
is affected by the proposals. Whilst 
the proposed development would 
result in the loss of approximately 
32ha of agricultural land, the final 
scheme would create 14ha of 
agricultural grassland and 6ha of 
species-rich grassland. 

The site is located within the 
floodplain of the River Dove and 
River Tean (Flood Zone 3). There 
should be no net loss of floodplain 
storage as a result of the 

A detailed Flood Risk Assessment 
has been undertaken and is 
provided at Technical Appendix 
12.3. The assessment confirms 
that the quarry void would provide 

Page 24



  

 
 

Development considerations 
for the Uttoxeter North 
allocation 

Addressed in the application/ 
environmental statement (ES) 
by: 

excavations. Any ancillary 
development should be located in 
areas of lowest risk. Any excavated 
material should be stored outside 
of the extent of the 1 in 100 year 
(with climate change) floodplain 
unless its temporary storage would 
be acceptable to the Environment 
Agency 

additional floodwater storage and 
would therefore act to reduce the 
risk of flooding downstream. 
Regarding the storage of soil in 
mounds within the floodplain, the 
applicant has sought to address 
the concerns of the Environment 
Agency and a response is awaited 
(see below). 

Restoration should seek to 
reinstate landscape features such 
as hedgerows, hedgerow oaks, 
small woodlands and flood pasture. 
Need to ensure that biodiversity 
benefits achieved through 
restoration outweigh the losses 
with lowland meadow being a 
priority habitat 

Restoration proposals for the site 
are shown on the plans ‘Concept 
Restoration’ and ‘Restoration 
Sections’ and described in the 
Planning Statement. The 
biodiversity benefits of the 
proposed restoration are set out 
within Chapter 8 (Nature 
Conservation and Ecology) of the 
ES. A Biodiversity Net Gain 
calculation has been undertaken 
indicating a 12.69% net gain for 
habitat units and a 116.47% net 
gain for hedgerow units. 

The site has major opportunities 
for river restoration and the 
provision of quality biodiverse 
floodplain habitats with improved 
connectivity between rivers and 
floodplain. 

The applicant’s Regulation 25 
response to comments from the 
Environment Agency confirms 
proposals to enhance the river 
corridor in a detailed scheme.  

Consideration should be given to 
the public rights of way affected by  
the site. 

The potential for effects on public 
rights of way is considered within 
Chapter 15 of the ES.  
Footpaths to be diverted have 
been inspected with applicant by 
Rights of Way Officer. 
 

Veteran Tree 

69. Regarding the consideration relating to the retention of visually significant 
vegetation, the proposals involve the removal of eight trees (refer to Tree 
Constraints Plan attached to Arboricultural Survey Report). The survey 
indicates that one of these trees is a veteran tree and paragraph 180(c) 
states that ‘development resulting in the loss or deterioration of irreplaceable 

Page 25



  

 
 

habitats (such as ancient woodland and ancient or veteran trees) should be 
refused, unless there are wholly exceptional reasons and a suitable 
compensation strategy exists’.  

 
70. The veteran tree to be felled, is within the northern part of the extension 

area and its retention would sterilize a substantial quantity of mineral which 
the applicant suggests would render the proposed extension economically 
unviable. ‘Wholly exceptional circumstances’ are justified by the applicant, 
therefore, on the grounds that the land is allocated in the Minerals Local Plan 
and is part of the planned provision for meeting the need for sand and gravel 
over the period up to 2030.  

 
71. The significance of the proposal in the context of the MLP and the wider 

public benefit is not disputed by your officers. The proposed northern 
extension does not include all the land that was allocated as it is understood 
that the sand and gravel resource within the allocation is less than originally 
anticipated. As the applicant suggests that the proposal is marginally viable, 
it would be reasonable to assume that there is little scope for losing 
substantial resource to provide for a buffer zone around the tree.  

 
72. Conclusion: Given the above justification, it is your officers view that there 

are ‘wholly exceptional circumstances’ for the loss of the veteran tree. 
Compensatory planting is proposed which involves extending existing 
woodland by an additional 0.91ha. In addition, the Environment Advice Team 
recommend that large sections (main trunks) of all felled veteran and over-
mature timber are relocated to the fringes of the site where they should 
remain undisturbed.  This would be particularly helpful if placed near to 
remaining mature and over-mature trees, and preferably in shaded or partly 
shaded locations. This would provide continuity of habitat for specialist 
invertebrates and other species as well as compensate for the loss of the 
veteran tree. 

Restoration Progress 

73. The applicant is required to demonstrate significant progress with the 
completion of restoration works within the existing quarry and this 
consideration reflects the concerns raised by the resident’s representation 
and the Local Member. 

 
74. As indicated above, the applicant has submitted information with the 

application to indicate that the proposals would not hinder the achievement 
of restoration of most areas of the current quarry in accordance with 
timescales approved in consideration of application ref: ES.16/15/524 MW. 
Current progress with mineral extraction should mean that restoration is 
achieved within the next 12 months except for the operational areas required 
for the development of the northern extension i.e. processing and stockpiling 
area, access roads and lagoons. These operational areas within the current 
permitted site would be restored following the cessation of mineral extraction 

Page 26



  

 
 

within the extension area i.e. during 2026. 

Flood Risk 

75. As indicated above, at the time of writing this report, the Environment 
Agency (EA) maintained a holding objection on the grounds that additional 
clarification was required regarding the impact of the soil storage mounds 
within the floodplain in terms of the volume of flood plain storage lost and 
the risk if the mounds were left in-situ for longer than anticipated. In 
addition, the Agency has recommended that during mineral operations that 
there is geomorphological monitoring to monitor the width of stand-offs 
between the quarry workings and the rivers with the aim of preventing a 
breach of the river into mineral workings. 

 
76. Since submission of the further information, the applicant has met with the 

EA and additional information has been provided to clarify the findings of the 
Flood Risk Assessment as well as to clarify the measures that would be taken 
to monitor stand-offs from the river. A response to this information is 
expected by 28 July and will be reported verbally to the Planning Committee. 

 
77. The EA has advised that if the County Council is minded to approve the 

application contrary to the EA’s current objection, it is requested that the 
Council explains the material considerations to outweigh the objection to 
allow the EA to make further representations. In accordance with the Town 
and Country Planning (Consultation) (England) Direction 2021, the County 
Council would be also required to consult the Secretary of State for Levelling 
Up, Housing and Communities. 

 
78.  The expertise in the matter of flood risk rests with the EA but in view of the 

recent discussions held between the applicant and the EA, it is reasonably 
anticipated that the EA’s objection can be overcome. 

 
79. Conclusion: Having regard to the policies, other material considerations and 

the consultee comments, it is reasonable to conclude that the application 
satisfactorily addresses the development considerations associated with the 
Uttoxeter North allocation in the MLP, subject to confirmation from the 
Environment Agency that their concerns about flood risk have been 
overcome. 

Other matters raised by consultees and in representations 

Use of straw bales 

80. Mitigation of noise as would affect the nearest residential property, which is 
Beningborough House, is proposed by erecting a temporary barrier of straw 
bales up to the height of 3 metres and up to 150 metres long. The bales 
would be placed inside the western boundary alongside the B5030. As 
indicated above, the resident of another nearby property objects to the 

Page 27

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/979435/Consultation_Direction_2021.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/979435/Consultation_Direction_2021.pdf


  

 
 

proposed use of straw bales and suggests that as an alternative, soil bunds 
should be used. 

 
81. The applicant proposes to use bales as this would involve less land and 

thereby allow for more mineral to be extracted. In mitigation the applicant, 
advises that the bales would be required for approximately 8 months of the 
proposed mineral extraction works i.e., for the duration of phases 1B and 2B. 
It is then recommended that the bales could be removed if considered 
visually intrusive rather than for the full duration of extraction within the 
northern part of the extension area because the bales would no longer be 
required for noise mitigation. The applicant also advises that during the first 
available planting season, a new section of hedgerow/ hedgerow trees would 
be planted along the western boundary of Phase 1B bordering the B5030, to 
accompany the existing hedgerow for screening purposes. The existing 
hedgerow would be also allowed to grow taller during the operational period. 

 
82. Regarding concerns about the safety risks of storing bales in this location 

which would be adjacent to a diverted public right of way, the applicant 
proposes that there would be weekly monitoring of the condition of the bales 
by the quarry manager. 

 
83. Conclusion: Having regard to the requirements for efficient mineral working 

and the requirements of policy 4 of the MLP to minimise the impact of 
mineral working, it is reasonable to conclude that provision of the straw bale 
barrier over a temporary period is acceptable for the purposes of mitigating 
noise in this location. 

Other Restoration Issues 

84. Concerns of the Uttoxeter Rural Parish Council, a local resident and the Local 
Member relate to the delivery of benefits to the local community arising from 
the restoration of the quarry. As considered above, the proposal does not 
adversely affect the currently approved timescale for restoration of the 
quarry. 

 
85. Previously, as part of the approval of revised timescales for the restoration of 

the current quarry (refer to application ref: ES.16/15/524 MW), the applicant 
is required to provide a contribution towards works for the development of 
sports pitches on part of the quarry that has been already quarried and 
restored by the applicant. This contribution will be secured through a Section 
106 Legal Agreement (Section 106), and it is intended that development of 
the sports pitches will involve the Staffordshire Football Association (SFA). 
Development of the sports pitches will require a separate planning 
permission from the Borough Council but when permission is secured the 
SFA would be able to lease the land and use available funding including the 
sports contribution to be provided under the terms of the Section 106. The 
Section 106 is now nearing completion. 

 

Page 28



  

 
 

86. Restoration of the existing quarry involves creation of a large lake as well as 
other smaller water bodies and in terms of the requirements of the current 
mineral permission, a significant part of the restoration is intended to create 
habitat for the benefit of biodiversity. The lake has the potential for water 
recreational use but any development of the lake beyond ‘green’ afteruses 
would require the benefit of a separate planning permission to be decided by 
the Borough Council. For example, comments received from the Caldon and 
Uttoxeter Canal Trust indicate a future potential for part of the quarry to be 
developed for the benefit of reinstating a canal. 

 
87. Regarding the proposed northern extension, the proposal includes the 

creation of three additional water bodies as well wet woodland, and 
grassland. As the proposals affect existing public footpaths, the applicant 
also proposes to extend the existing footpath network and provide a circular 
walk around the proposed two northern lakes. One of the existing footpaths 
connects to the riverbank of the Dove and it has been questioned by the 
Ramblers’ Association whether it might be feasible to provide a footbridge 
which could connect to the footpath network within Derbyshire. Historically, 
two footpaths either side of the river were connected by a ford, but this is no 
longer feasible. At this stage, the applicant considers that the costs of 
providing a footbridge would be unreasonable in relation to the scale of 
proposed development and it is considered that resources for restoration of 
the quarry are focused on improving the footpaths within the extension area. 

 
88. While the Environment Agency, require that the water bodies to be formed 

are maintained separate to the courses of the two rivers, the EA refer to the 
potential for enhancement of the river environment and improvements to 
biodiversity that would help meet objectives of the Water Framework 
Directive (refer to Policy 6.2 (j) of the MLP). The restoration of the extension 
area offers the opportunity for significant long-term beneficial effects by 
increasing the size and area of the wetland habitats in the adjacent Uttoxeter 
Quarry Local Wildlife Site (LWS) and for associated species, including 
breeding and wintering birds, bats, and otters. The applicant has submitted a 
plan showing a restoration concept for the extension area, but it is 
recommended that a detailed restoration and aftercare should be required 
within 12 months if permission is granted so that river habitat enhancement 
works can be agreed and linked to enhancement works to be created within 
the existing quarry. 

 
89. Conclusion: Having regard to Policies 4 and 6 of the MLP and Detailed Policy 

10 of the East Staffordshire District Local Plan, it is reasonable to conclude 
that the proposals can provide restoration benefits to outweigh objections to 
the proposed restoration of the quarry, subject to conditions requiring a 
detailed restoration and aftercare scheme. 

Need for a Section 106 Legal Agreement 

90. Paragraph 55 to the NPPF explains that: 

Page 29



  

 
 

 
‘Local planning authorities should consider whether otherwise 
unacceptable development could be made acceptable through the use of 
conditions or planning obligations. Planning obligations should only be 
used where it is not possible to address unacceptable impacts through a 
planning condition’. 
 

91. Paragraph 57 explains states: 
 

‘Planning obligations must only be sought where they meet all of the 
following tests: 
 
(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 
(b) directly related to the development; and 
(c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.’ 

92. These are also legal tests by virtue of the Community Infrastructure Levy 
Regulations 2010 (regulation 122). The 2010 Regulations also prevent the 
use of a planning obligation to fund infrastructure if a Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) has been adopted in the area (regulation 123). East 
Staffordshire Borough Council have not yet adopted a CIL Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL). 

93. Commentary: It is recommended that the following undertakings be secured 
by a Section 106 Legal Agreement (S106). The reasons why the 
undertakings meet the tests referred to above are explained below: 

 
a) To provide 5 years extended aftercare in addition to 5 years statutory 

aftercare required by legislation and planning condition, in accordance 
with a scheme to be agreed with the Mineral Planning Authority. 

 
This undertaking would support the establishment of the proposed after uses 
including wetland habitat in accordance with the MLP (Policy 6) and the NPPF 
(Sections 15 and 17). 

 
b) To secure a Restoration Guarantee Bond either by being a member of 

the Mineral Products Association and eligible to draw on their scheme, or 
by arranging another financial guarantee to cover the costs of 
restoration and aftercare. 

 
This undertaking would ensure that there are financial provisions in place for 
restoration and aftercare in case the operator goes out of business. This 
would be in accordance with the MLP (Policy 6) and the NPPF (Section 17). 
 
c) To require a scheme of groundwater monitoring for Crakemarsh Pond, 

and to determine mitigation measures should water levels fall below 
agreed levels. 

Page 30

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2010/9780111492390/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2010/9780111492390/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2010/9780111492390/regulation/122
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2010/9780111492390/regulation/123


  

 
 

 
This would ensure that the water environment of this pond is monitored to 
prevent any potential harm from the temporary dewatering of quarry 
workings in accordance with the MLP (Policy 4) and the NPPF (Sections 15 
and 17). 
 
d) To continue the existing arrangements for the site liaison committee. 
 
This undertaking ensures that a forum continues for key stakeholders to be 
kept informed about the progress of the working and restoration of the site 
and for concerns about site operations or opportunities to improve the 
working and restoration of the site to be discussed in accordance with the 
Minerals Local Plan (Policy 4) and the NPPF (Sections 4 and 17). 

 
94.. Conclusion: Having regard to the policies and guidance referred to above, it 

is reasonable to conclude that the undertakings within the proposed Section 
106 Legal Agreement are necessary; directly relate to the development; and 
are fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the proposed 
development. 

Overall Conclusion 

95. Overall, as an exercise of judgement, taking the relevant up-to-date 
development plan policies as a whole and having given consideration to the 
application, the supporting and environmental information, including the 
information subsequently received, the consultee comments, the 
representations and the other material considerations, all referred to above, 
it is reasonable to conclude that the proposed development accords with the 
development plan and as such represents sustainable development, and 
there are no clear and convincing reasons to indicate that the application for 
planning permission should not be permitted. 

Recommendation 

Permit the proposed development for the northern extension to Uttoxeter Quarry 
for the winning and working of sand and gravel with restoration to agriculture, 
water-based recreation and nature conservation, with the continued use of existing 
access, site offices, processing plant, silt lagoons and ancillary infrastructure 
subject to: 

a) The applicant first completing the Section 106 Legal Agreement to allow the 
2016 planning permission ref. ES.16/15/524 MW to be issued; 

 
b) The applicant and all other persons with a relevant interest in the land (for 

the purposes of Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990) 
signing a Section 106 Legal Agreement - the heads of terms to include those 
listed below; and, 

 

Page 31



  

 
 

c) Conditions including those listed below. 

The Section 106 Legal Agreement heads of terms to include: 

1. To provide 5 years extended aftercare in addition to 5 years statutory 
aftercare required by legislation and planning condition, in accordance with a 
scheme to be agreed with the Mineral Planning Authority. 

2. To secure a Restoration Guarantee Bond either by being a member of the 
Mineral Products Association and eligible to draw on their scheme, or by 
arranging another financial guarantee to cover the costs of restoration and 
aftercare. 

3. To require a scheme of groundwater monitoring for Crakemarsh Pond, and to 
determine mitigation measures should water levels fall below agreed levels. 

4. To continue the existing arrangements for the site liaison committee. 

The conditions to include the following: 

1. To define the permission with reference to documents and plans. 

Commencement 

2. To commence within 3 years of the date of the planning permission and to 
require notice of commencement of soil stripping, cessation of working and 
restoration operations in the northern extension area. 

Dates for Cessation of Mineral Extraction, Restoration Operations and 
Expiry of the Permission 

3. To require the winning and working of sand and gravel to cease no later than 
3 years after the commencement of soil stripping within the first phase of 
working as notified under 2 above. 

4. To require the restoration of the Site to be completed no later than 12 
months after the cessation of winning and working of sand and gravel which 
shall include the removal of all processing plant.  

5. If winning and working of sand and gravel should cease prematurely, then 
the Site to be restored and subject to aftercare in accordance with a revised 
restoration and aftercare scheme previously agreed in writing. 

6. To define the expiry of the permission to be when the restoration and 
aftercare has been completed in accordance with the latest approved 
Restoration and Aftercare Scheme. 

Phasing and Limit of Extraction,  

Page 32



  

 
 

7. To require the winning and working of sand and gravel as well as progressive 
restoration to be carried out in accordance with the approved plans. 

8. To require no mineral extraction to be carried out within 30 metres of the 
edge of the bank of the River Dove and within 10 metres from the River 
Tean. 

9. To limit sand and gravel exports from the site during any one calendar year 
to 400,000 tonnes. 

Management of Site Operations 

Development Restrictions 
 
10. To restrict permitted development rights. 

Hours of Operation 
 
11. To limit the winning and working of sand and gravel to: 

07:00 and 18:00 Monday to Fridays (not including Bank or Public 
holidays); and 
07:00 and 13:00 Saturdays.  

 
Stockpiling 
 
12. To define the area for stockpiling mineral and the height of stockpiles. 

Soil Management 
 
13. To require soil to be managed in accordance with Section 14.6 of the 

Environmental Statement. 

14. To require soil mounds to be seeded and maintained in a weed free 
condition. 

Landscaping 
 
15. To require the enhancement of hedgerows on the western boundary to be 

carried out during the first planting season after commencement of 
development. 

Site Access and Lorry Movements 
 
16. To define the access to be used by HGVs. 

17. To require all HGVs to turn left when leaving the site and to require a sign to 
that effect to be maintained. 

Page 33



  

 
 

18. To require wheel cleaning facilities to be operated and maintained so that 
any vehicle leaving the site will not deposit mud, dirt and other deleterious 
materials on the public highway.  

19. To require the site access road and internal hard surfaced roads to be 
maintained in a good state of repair and kept clean and free of mud, dirt and 
other deleterious materials. 

20. To require loaded HGVs leaving the site to be sheeted. 

21. To set the average number of HGV movements to and from the site, 
measured over a week to a maximum of: 

182 movements per day (91 in and 91 out) Monday to Friday; and, 
92 movements on a Saturday (46 in and 46 out). 
 

To set the maximum number of HGV movements on any full working day to 
192 (96 in and 96 out). 

 
Environmental Management 

Noise 
 
22. To require a revised noise monitoring scheme and implementation of the 

approved scheme prior to the commencement of soil stripping within phase 
1B. 

23. To limit noise at the nearest noise sensitive properties to the numbers in 
Table 10.2 of the Environmental Statement. 

24. To require non- intrusive reversing alarms to be used on vehicles and plant 
capable of using such alarms. 

25. To require the straw bale barrier to be erected and maintained in place 
before soil stripping starts in phase 1B and to be maintained there until the 
winning and working of sand and gravel ceases in phase 2B. 

Dust 
 
26. To review the Dust Management Plan prior to the commencement of soil 

stripping in phase 1B; and implementation of the approved plan. 

Flood Risk and Safeguarding the Water Environment 
 
27. To require compliance with the Staffordshire SuDS Handbook and section 12 

of the approved Environmental Statement; and Appendix 2 to the 
Submission under Regulation 25. 

Page 34



  

 
 

28. To require a scheme for geomorphological monitoring for the stand-offs 
between the River Dove and mineral excavations including measures for 
mitigating riverbank erosion; and implementation of the approved scheme . 

Landscaping and visual screening 
 
29. To require trees and hedgerows to be protected in accordance with the 

Arboricultural Survey Report. 

Nature Conservation and Archaeology 

30. To require archaeological work to be implemented in accordance with the 
approved Outline Archaeological Mitigation Strategy before the start of the 
winning and working of sand and gravel. 

31. To require large sections (main trunks) of all felled veteran and over-mature 
timber to be relocated to the fringes of the site before the start of the 
winning and working of sand and gravel and to remain there undisturbed.  

32. To require a Construction Environmental Management Plan for Biodiversity to 
be submitted before the start of the development, and implementation of the 
approved plan. The Plan to include details to avoid harm to species (e.g., 
toads and bats), retained habitats within the site and neighbouring habitats 
(indirect effects).  

33. To require the submission of an Invasive Species Management Plan to 
demonstrate how species including Himalayan Balsam and Giant Hogweed 
will be controlled on site, and implementation of the approved scheme. 

34. To require the submission of a Habitat and Landscape Management Plan to 
be submitted for approval, containing details of how new habitat will be 
created and monitored, including target species compositions and how 
failures will be remediated, and implementation of the approved plan. 

35. To require the site to be restored to achieve the 207.47 habitat units and 
22.52 hedgerow units determined by the Biodiversity Metric 3.0 2021 
(DEFRA). 

36. To require the submission of Biodiversity Metric Reports to update the 
progress towards achieving the metrics referred to in above condition. 

Restoration and Aftercare 

37. To require the site to be progressively restored in general accordance with 
the ‘Concept Restoration’ (Dwg no AI-046-M.D.004 Rev A).  

38. To require a detailed Restoration and Aftercare Scheme for the site within 12 
months of the commencement of soil stripping that is compatible with the 
approved restoration and aftercare scheme for the other part of the site.  

Page 35



  

 
 

39. To require the submission of soil tests before the seeding of species-rich 
grassland areas. 

Record Keeping 

40. To require records of HGV movements, the quantities of mineral exported 
from the site, the operating hours, the noise and groundwater monitoring, 
and any complaints and remedial actions taken. 

 
Case Officer: Matthew Griffin Tel: (01785) 277275 

email: mat.giffin@staffordshire.gov.uk  
 

The list of background papers for this report is available on request by 
email sent to planning@stafforshire.gov.uk. 

 

Appendix 1: Summary of the findings of the Environmental 
Statement 

Section 1 – Introduction 

This section sets out the context of the planning application and provides details 
concerning the applicant and project team for the preparation of environmental 
statement (ES). 

Section 2 – Site Appraisal 

This section describes the application site, its location and setting as well as the 
relevant planning history. 

Section 3 – Description of Development 

This section describes the mineral resource to be extracted and explains the 
operations involved in the winning and working of the sand and gravel including 
restoration of the land. 

Section 4 – Planning Policy Context 

This section sets out relevant policy in the Development Plan which consists of the 
Minerals Local Plan for Staffordshire (2015 to 2030), the East Staffordshire 
Borough Local Plan (2012 – 2031) and Uttoxeter Neighbourhood Plan (2012 – 
2031). Material considerations are referenced including the National Planning Policy 
Framework. Having regard to the proposals, the Development Plan and other 
material considerations, this section lists the key policy considerations for the 
application. 

Page 36

mailto:mat.giffin@staffordshire.gov.uk
mailto:planning@stafforshire.gov.uk


  

 
 

Section 5 – Environmental Impact Assessment 

This section explains the need for the environmental impact assessment and 
introduces the main environmental considerations for the proposals. 

Section 6 – Alternatives 

Whilst there is no requirement to consider alternatives, this section sets out the 
approach to consideration of alternatives to the proposal. It is concluded that the 
proposals, as submitted, represent the best scheme from both sustainability and 
commercial viability points of view as well as being the most environmentally 
acceptable. 

Section 7 – Transport 

An assessment of the potential effects on transport and highway safety has been 
considered within a Transport Assessment (TA) which is included as an appendix to 
the ES. The TA focuses on highway capacity and road safety and considers the 
development in the context of existing site operations and non-site traffic. 
The proposed development would not trigger the requirement for any further 
environmental assessment of road traffic, given that there would be no net change 
in the number of HGV or staff movements. Traffic generated by the proposed 
development is considered to be of negligible significance on the surrounding 
highway network. The site has operated without giving rise to any unacceptable 
effects on the highway network and there are no proposals to increase the vehicle 
movements to or from the site in connection with these proposals. [Note that there 
are current proposals for the importation and processing of scalpings (application 
ref SCC/21/0047/FULL-ES) that are separately assessed in an ES accompanying 
that application. That assessment identified no material change in the 
environmental impact of traffic in terms of volumes of HGVs, though matters of 
HGV routeing have been agreed with the relevant highway authorities.] 

Section 8 – Nature Conservation and Ecology 

To assess the impact of the proposals on ecological features of value, including 
potential effects upon statutory and non-statutory designated sites, habitats of 
nature conservation interest, legally protected and notable species; baseline 
surveys have been undertaken and technical reports provided. These reports 
include a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal as well as reports for surveys of breeding 
birds, wintering birds, bats, reptiles, and otter and water vole. An arboricultural 
survey report was also included. 
 
Significant ecological effects are not anticipated for most habitats located within 
the site. Due to the loss of eight important scattered trees to be removed from the 
field within the northern part of the extension area, however, it is assessed that 
there would be residual impacts associated with this long-term negative effect. 
 
Mitigation measures required to prevent, reduce, or offset any significant adverse 

Page 37



  

 
 

effects include: 
 
• Maintaining standoffs from the working areas to the existing important 

habitats of broad-leaved semi-natural woodland and intact species-rich 
hedgerows. 

• Phased methods of working and restoration, such that soil stripping and 
vegetation removal can be timed to minimise disturbance to nesting birds, 
bats and other protected species. 

• Including extensive areas of new tree and woodland planting as part of 
restoration to replace the limited number of scattered trees that would be 
lost because of the development. 

 
Overall, the final restoration scheme offers the opportunity for significant long-
term beneficial effects at the site by increasing the size and area of the wetland 
habitats in the adjacent Uttoxeter Quarry Local Wildlife Site (LWS) and associated 
species, including breeding and wintering birds, bats, otters, as well as 
replacement of scattered trees that would be lost because of the proposals. This is 
likely to be significant at a countywide scale. 

Section 9 – Landscape and Visual 

A Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA) was undertaken which 
considered the potential for significant environmental effects on the landscape 
character of the site and surrounding area. The assessment concluded that the 
proposed soils stripping, and mineral extraction works would not have an 
unacceptable effect on the landscape character of the area. 
 
Post restoration the main change in character would be the creation of water 
bodies located within the landscape. The LVIA concluded that this would have a 
beneficial effect on the landscape character of the area. 

In terms of the potential for visual effects, it is considered that residential and 
commercial properties, as well as users of the public rights of way, may be 
affected by the proposed development. Visual changes would comprise soil 
stripping and placement to create new land contours, temporary storage of soil in 
3-5m bunds and use of mobile plant and dump trucks on the site. 

The scheme would include measures to reduce impacts including strengthening 
and species diversification of the western hedgerow along the B.5030 and the 
placement of 150m linear metres of straw bales part-way along the western 
boundary to create a visual screen on the phases closest to the footpath and 
B5030 road. These measures would ensure that the proposed development would 
not have any unacceptable effects on the landscape character of the area or visual 
effects on nearby receptors. 

Section 10 – Noise 

Site noise calculations were undertaken for seven off-site receiver locations: the 

Page 38



  

 
 

nearest residential receptors to the west of the B5030 and more distant dwellings 
to the east of the River Dove (Eaton Hall Farm and Doveridge Holiday Cottages). 
 
Mitigation would be incorporated in the form of 150 linear metres of straw bales 
(to a height of 3 m above existing ground level) to be positioned part-way along 
the western site boundary. Furthermore, wherever practicable, and without 
contravening health and safety requirements, all vehicles would be fitted with non-
intrusive reversing/ warning safety systems. 
 
The noise assessment carried out as part of the planning application has 
demonstrated that, with the above mitigation measures in place, the proposed 
mineral extraction and restoration works can be carried out without exceeding the 
specified noise limits set out within the existing planning permission. In conclusion, 
the proposed development would not give rise to any unacceptable noise effects. 

Section 11 – Air Quality and Dust 

The Dust and Air Quality Assessment, undertaken as part of this planning 
application, examined the potential impact of dust emissions and considered the 
sensitivity of receptors to dust soiling, the sensitivity of people to health effects 
and the sensitivity of receptors to ecological effects. The most dust sensitive 
receptors identified within the assessment are the residential properties to the 
west of the site. 
 
Dust is currently managed at Uttoxeter Quarry in accordance with a Dust 
Management Plan and these measures would remain in place for the duration of 
working within the extension area. Furthermore, the site’s Dust Management Plan 
would be reviewed and updated to ensure it remains relevant and effective. 
 
The proposed mitigation measures, along with the high moisture content of the 
extracted material, should ensure that the proposed development does not give 
rise to any unacceptable effects regarding dust or air quality. 

Section 12 – Water Resources and Flood Risk 

In support of this planning application, a Hydrogeological Impact Assessment (HIA) 
and Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) were undertaken. 
 
Uttoxeter Quarry is dewatered through the use of pumps to allow the mineral to be 
extracted dry. Therefore, an assessment was made of the potential for the 
dewatering of the site to affect the River Dove, River Tean, River Dove tributaries 
(notably Alders Brook), Crakemarsh Pond and the sand and gravel aquifer. It 
concluded that the proposed development would not have an effect on the River 
Dove or River Tean or their tributaries. However, the dewatering of the extension 
area could potentially lower water levels within Crakemarsh Pond to the west. To 
confirm this, additional water level monitoring has been proposed within the pond 
and if necessary, water would be transferred from the quarry to the pond to 
maintain appropriate water levels. 

Page 39



  

 
 

 
The FRA concluded that whilst most of the site would remain at high risk of 
flooding from the River Dove and River Tean, the quarrying activities are classified 
as ‘water compatible’ which is the least flood-vulnerable of all vulnerability 
categories. The FRA concludes that the proposed development would not reduce 
the floodplain storage capacity and would not increase the risk of flooding at the 
site or elsewhere. 

Section 13 – Cultural Heritage 

No designated assets of cultural heritage importance lie within the boundary of the 
application site. The magnitude of impact on two discrete areas of ridge and furrow 
within the application site (2.58ha) is considered to be Major. A mitigation strategy 
for the ridge and furrow (and possible remains of water meadows) is proposed. 
 
In conclusion, given the proposed mitigation and the proposals to undertake 
further assessment work, it is concluded that the proposed development would not 
have any unacceptable effects on cultural heritage and archaeology. 

Section 14 – Soil Resources and Agricultural Land 

A detailed soil resource and agricultural quality survey was carried out and the 
findings of that survey indicate that land within the western part of the application 
site is classified as grade 2 or 3a land. 
 
The proposed development would result in the loss of approximately 32ha of 
agricultural land. However, the final restoration scheme would result in the 
creation of approximately 14ha of agricultural grassland and 6ha of species-rich 
grassland.  
 
All soils stripped from the site because of site preparation works would be retained 
on site for use in the progressive restoration of the extension area. It is concluded 
that the proposed development would not result in any significant effects on 
agricultural land quality or soil resources. 

Section 15 – Public Rights of Way 

Sections of Public Rights of Way (PROW) Uttoxeter Rural 30(b) and Uttoxeter Rural 
31 run within the northern part of the extension area and PROW Uttoxeter Rural 
28(a) runs through land to the southwest of the extension area and crosses the 
proposed haul route close to the River Tean. Permission would be sought to divert 
public footpaths ‘Uttoxeter Rural 30(b)’ and ‘Uttoxeter Rural 31’ to enable mineral 
extraction to proceed and for the site to be restored. 
 
Whilst there would be a need to divert the footpaths that currently cross the 
northern part of the site, the restoration scheme would create additional footpath 
routes through the site. 

Page 40



  

 
 

Section 16 – Climate Change 

The effects of climate change and the vulnerability of the proposals to these 
changes has been considered as part of the preparation of the ES, particularly in 
terms of hydrology/ flood risk and ecology (i.e. the impacts of climate change on 
habitats and species). The proposals would not result in any significant impacts 
with respect to hydrology, hydrogeology or flood risk even when taking account of 
the predicted likely effects of climate change. 
 
It is not possible to transport materials to or from the site using sustainable modes 
of transport, for example rail or water. There would be no significant increase, 
however, in the number of HGV movements from the site as the proposed 
extension area would be worked after mineral extraction has ceased in the current 
quarry and the current output of around 400,000tpa is expected to continue. In 
terms of vehicles and emissions, since the Euro VI emission standards came into 
force in 2014, all vehicles supplied after September 2014 must comply with the 
Euro VI requirements. The applicant has been strategically replacing HGVs older 
than 2014 within the fleet at Uttoxeter Quarry. 

Section 17 – Socio Economic Considerations 

Uttoxeter Quarry employs 7 full time employees including weighbridge operatives 
and plant staff as well as around 9 load and haul contractors and one cleaner. 
Additionally, maintenance contractors are employed on an ad hoc basis although 
their numbers vary. If permission is granted for the extension area, it would secure 
at least 17 site-based and haulage jobs (plus additional jobs for maintenance 
contractors) for the duration of the mineral extraction operations, which is 
expected to take approximately 3 years. 

Section 18 – Cumulative Impact Assessment 

The likely effects of the proposed development, and the likely effects of other 
developments in the geographical area of the site, have been considered in order 
to determine the likelihood of cumulative effects, i.e. the cumulative impacts and 
the impact interactions. 
 
The findings of the technical assessments demonstrate that there would be no 
significant cumulative effects arising from the proposals. 

Section 19 – Conclusions 

It is considered that the proposed development would not have any greater impact 
than the existing operations, although the lifespan of Uttoxeter Quarry would be 
extended by between approximately 3 and 4 years. Overall, it is considered that 
the proposals are environmentally acceptable and support the economic, social, 
and environmental roles of sustainable development required in the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 

Page 41



  

 
 

Further Information – Introduction 

Following initial consultation on the planning application and the accompanying 
Environmental Statement further information was requested from the applicant. 
This further information was subject to consultation and publicised in accordance 
with the relevant regulations during May – June 2022. 

Further Information – Ecology 

In response to comments from the Environment advice Team, additional 
information was provided in relation to effect on veteran and near veteran trees; 
toads; bat roosts; restoration particularly in relation to the river environment. 

Further Information – Hydrology (Flood Risk) 

In response to comments from the Environment Agency, a geomorphological 
assessment has been undertaken and the report concludes that ‘a 30m standoff 
from the River Dove is considered appropriate based on the evidence gathered on 
the historic and contemporary rates of erosion, field observations, the short 
timescale of the quarry extraction phases and the inclusion of a safety factor.’ 
In response the Agency’s concerns about storage of soils within the floodplain, the 
clarification of the Flood Risk Assessment concludes that floodplain compensatory 
storage provided by the soil strip and excavation that will be greater than that lost 
by the temporary placement of the soil bunds. 
 
Regarding the Agency’s concerns about ground water monitoring, it is clarified that 
monitoring of the Crakemarsh Pond commenced in October 2021, utilising a data 
logger. All monitoring is ongoing. Trigger levels will be established based upon the 
longest available record prior to the commencement of extraction with the 
extension area. 
 
In response to questions raised by the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA), a 
technical note was submitted to address concerns about capacity to deal with flood 
waters during operations and when the site would be restored. As indicated above, 
the LLFA are satisfied with additional information. 
 
Return to the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) section of the 
report 
 

Appendix 2: The development plan policies (and proposals) and 
the other material planning considerations, relevant to this 
decision 

The development plan policies and proposals 

The Minerals Local Plan for Staffordshire (2015 - 2030)  
(adopted 16 February 2017) 

Page 42

http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/mlp


  

 
 

 
• Policy 1: Provision for Sand and Gravel 

Extensions to sand and gravel sites 
o Policy 1.1 (c) – Uttoxeter (Inset Map 3) *  

• Policy 4: Minimising the impact of mineral development  
• Policy 6: Restoration of Mineral Sites  
• Strategic Objective 1 (The sustainable economic development of minerals) 
• Strategic Objective 2 (Operating to high environmental standards); and, 
• Strategic Objective 4 (Restoration that enhances local amenity and the 

environment) 
 
* See Appendices to the Minerals Local Plan - Inset Map 3 – Uttoxeter North and 
the accompanying development considerations.  
 
A partial review of the Minerals Local Plan for Staffordshire to check conformity 
with the revised National Planning Policy Framework took place in February 2019. 
The review concluded that the policies in the Minerals Local Plan conform with the 
revised NPPF and therefore they continue to carry weight in the determination of 
planning applications for mineral development.  
 
East Staffordshire District Local Plan (2012-2031) (adopted 15 October 2015)  
 
• Principle 1 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development;  
• Strategic Policy 1 - Approach to Sustainable Development;  
• Strategic Policy 23 - Green Infrastructure; 
• Strategic Policy 25 – Historic Environment; 
• Strategic Policy 27 - Climate Change, Water Body Management and Flooding 
• Strategic Policy 29 - Biodiversity and Geodiversity 
• Strategic Policy 30 - Locally Significant Landscape 
• Strategic Policy 32 - Outdoor Sports and Open Space Policy 
• Strategic Policy 34 – Health and Wellbeing 
• Detailed Policy 7 - Pollution and Contamination 
• Detailed Policy 10 - Blue Infrastructure and water-based recreation 
 
Uttoxeter Neighbourhood Plan (2012 – 2031) (Made March 2017) 
 
• Policy E2 – Landscape and Setting; 
• Policy E3 – Green Links 

The other material planning considerations 

• National Planning Policy Framework (updated 20 July 2021): 
 

o Section 1: Introduction 
o Section 2: Achieving sustainable development 
o Section 4: Decision-making 
o Section 8: Promoting healthy communities 

Page 43

https://apps2.staffordshire.gov.uk/scc/TrimDocProvider/?ID=002/20/20/0503906
https://apps2.staffordshire.gov.uk/scc/TrimDocProvider/?ID=002/20/20/050674
http://www.eaststaffsbc.gov.uk/planning/planning-policy/local-plan-2012-2031
http://www.eaststaffsbc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/docs/planning/planningpolicy/neighplanning/uttoxeter/UNP_Made_March17_080317.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/1-introduction
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/2-achieving-sustainable-development
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/4-decision-making
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/8-promoting-healthy-and-safe-communities


  

 
 

o Section 9: Promoting sustainable transport 
o Section 12 Achieving well-designed places 
o Section 14: Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and 

coastal change; 
o Section 15: Conserving and enhancing the natural environment; 
o Section 16: Conserving and enhancing the historic environment 
o Section 17: Facilitating the sustainable use of minerals 

 
• Planning Practice Guidance  
 

o Conserving and enhancing the historic environment 
o Design 
o Environmental Impact Assessment 
o Flood risk and coastal change 
o Land stability 
o Minerals 
o Natural environment 
o Noise 
o Open space, sports and recreation facilities, public rights of way and 

local green space 
o Planning obligations 
o Transport evidence bases in plan making and decision taking 
o Travel Plans, Transport Assessments and Statements 
o Use of planning conditions 

 
Return to Observation section of the report. 

Page 44

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/9-promoting-sustainable-transport
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/12-achieving-well-designed-places
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/14-meeting-the-challenge-of-climate-change-flooding-and-coastal-change
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/15-conserving-and-enhancing-the-natural-environment
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/16-conserving-and-enhancing-the-historic-environment
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/17-facilitating-the-sustainable-use-of-minerals
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/conserving-and-enhancing-the-historic-environment
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/design
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/environmental-impact-assessment
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-and-coastal-change
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/land-stability
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/minerals
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/natural-environment
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/noise--2
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/open-space-sports-and-recreation-facilities-public-rights-of-way-and-local-green-space
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/open-space-sports-and-recreation-facilities-public-rights-of-way-and-local-green-space
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/planning-obligations
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/transport-evidence-bases-in-plan-making-and-decision-taking
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/travel-plans-transport-assessments-and-statements
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/use-of-planning-conditions


Aggregate Industries UK Limited. Northern 
extension to Uttoxeter Quarry for the winning 
and working of sand and gravel with restoration 
to agriculture, water based recreation and nature 
conservation, with the continued use of existing 
access, site offices, processing plant, silt lagoons 
and ancillary infrastructure, Uttoxeter Quarry,
Spath, Uttoxeter.

13/01/22 1/12000

SK.096 351 SCC/21/0025/FULL-ES

Application Site Boundary.

Proposed Northern Extension.

Uttoxeter North Site Allocation 
(Adopted Minerals Local Plan 
2015-30).

Legend.

Plan 1 - Site Location

Existing Permitted Quarry.

Existing Quarry Access

Car Parking/Offices 
& Weighbridge

Existing Plant Site

Crakemarsh

Crakemarsh
Hall Farm

Home 
Farm

Beningbrough
House

Crakemarsh
Farm

Spath
Spath
Farm

Riversmede

Uttoxeter Quarry 

Sidford
Wood

Eaton 
Wood

Eaton Hall
Farm

Tollgate
Cottage

Noah’s Ark 

Leasowes
FarmCottonmill

Farm

Uttoxeter

Keystone
House

Derbyshire County
Stramshall

The 
Dimble

Fresh Water
Lagoon

Silt Lagoon 1 Silt Lagoon 2

Sports 
Hub Land

Sports Hub Land.

P
age 45





C  Crown Copyright and database rights 2021. Ordnance Survey 100019422. Produced by Staffordshire County Council, 2021. 
'You are not permitted to copy, sub-license, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form'.

O.S. Ref :Grid Ref :

®

Date : Scale :

Aggregate Industries UK Limited. Northern 
extension to Uttoxeter Quarry for the winning 
and working of sand and gravel with restoration
to agriculture, water based recreation and nature 
conservation, with the continued use of existing 
access, site offices, processing plant, silt lagoons 
and ancillary infrastructure, Uttoxeter Quarry, 
Spath, Uttoxeter.  

09/11/21 Not to Scale

SK.096 351 SCC/21/0025/FULL-ES

Plan 2 - Proposed Working

Page 47





SK.096 35

Plan 3 – Concept Restoration

Aggregate Industries UK Limited. Northern 
extension to Uttoxeter Quarry for the winning 
and working of sand and gravel with restoration 
to agriculture, water based recreation and nature 
conservation, with the continued use of existing 
access, site offices, processing plant, silt lagoons 
and ancillary infrastructure, Uttoxeter Quarry,
Spath, Uttoxeter.

21/06/22 Not to Scale

SK.096 351 SCC/21/0025/FULL-ES

Page 49





  

 
 

Local Member 

Councillor P.E.B. Atkins, OBE 
and 

Councillor P.A. Hudson 

Uttoxeter Rural 
 

Uttoxeter Town 
 
Planning Committee  04 August 2022 

Minerals County Matter  

Application No (District):  SCC/21/0047/FULL-ES (East Staffordshire)  

Applicant: Aggregate Industries UK Ltd 

Description Importation and temporary storage of limestone 
scalpings with the erection and use of an aggregate 
washing plant 

Location: Uttoxeter Quarry, Spath, Uttoxeter, Staffordshire, 
ST14 5AP 

Background/ Introduction 

1. Uttoxeter Quarry has been operating under a series of permissions since 
2001 and the current planning permission required the site to cease mineral 
extraction by 30 November 2016. However, the Planning Committee has 
approved an application to extend the cessation date to 30 November 2023, 
pending the completion of a Section 106 Legal Agreement (Section 106).  
The Section 106 is nearing completion, meanwhile sand and gravel extraction 
has continued and is expected to cease by the end of 2022. There is also a 
separate report on this Committee meeting agenda to consider a planning 
application to extend the mineral extraction area to the north (‘the northern 
extension’), which if permitted would extend the life of the quarry for a 
further 2.5 to 3 years (ref. SCC/21/0025/FULL-ES). The applicant anticipates 
that if the northern extension is granted permission, then mineral extraction 
at Uttoxeter Quarry would cease by the end of 2025.  For more details see 
‘Relevant Planning History’ below). 

2. This application is seeking temporary permission to import limestone 
scalpings from Cauldon Low Quarry and to process the scalpings with a new 
washing plant erected at Uttoxeter Quarry.  The operations would cease 
when mineral extraction at Uttoxeter Quarry ends. 

Site and Surroundings  

3. Uttoxeter Quarry lies approximately 100m to the north of the A50 Trunk 
Road, south of which lies the town of Uttoxeter, approximately 1.5 

Page 51

Agenda Item 4(b)

https://planning.agileapplications.co.uk/staffordshire/application-details/28386
https://planning.agileapplications.co.uk/staffordshire/application-details/28360


  

 
 

kilometres away. Access to the quarry is via a private road which runs from 
the B5030 Rocester Road immediately to the west of the quarry. 

4. The surrounding area is predominantly agricultural in nature and the quarry 
is bounded to the north by agricultural land with Cottonmill Farm and 
Leasowes Farm lying immediately to the south of the quarry. The proposed 
development for a new wash plant, would be situated within the western part 
of the quarry’s operational plant area with the greater extent of the 
operational quarry lying to the east.  The eastern boundary of the quarry is 
formed by the River Dove which is the boundary between the counties of 
Staffordshire and Derbyshire.  Agricultural land lies to the east of the quarry. 
To the west beyond the B5030 lies the village of Stramshall and hamlet of 
Spath. 

5. The nearest properties lie either side of the quarry’s access, ‘Riversmede’ to 
the north, and ‘Spath Farm’ and ‘Spath Cottage’ lying to the south of the 
quarry entrance. 

 
Figure 1 – Site Location Plan 

Summary of Proposals 

6. This application which is accompanied by an Environmental Statement (ES). 
relates to part of the 74-hectare quarry site outlined by the red line on Figure 
1 - Site Location Plan above. The proposed wash plant is also indicated on 
Figure 1. 

7. The application proposes to import 200,000 tonnes of limestone scalpings 
per year by heavy commercial vehicles (HCVs) from the applicant’s hard rock 
quarry at Cauldon Low, about 13km to the north (18km by road). The 
scalpings would be stockpiled, then washed within a new wash plant and 
stored as a limestone product ready for sale to construction markets. 

Proposed 
Wash Plant 

Page 52



  

 
 

8. The breakdown of the HCV movements is as follows: 

• 16,200 HCV import movements per year  
(32,400 two-way HCV movements), 

• 59 arrivals and 59 departures per day (based upon a standard 275 
working days per year) 

9. A Transport Assessment (TA) accompanied the planning application which 
assessed a worst-case scenario. The TA had proposed the use of local roads 
and national highways for HCVs travelling between the quarries. Further 
information to update the TA has, however, since been received following a 
request made under Regulation 25 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017. The further 
information relates to clarifications about HCV backhauling, the size of HCV 
vehicles and trip generation, and issues and options for traffic routing to 
minimise the impacts from traffic movements between the quarry at Cauldon 
Lowe and Uttoxeter Quarry; the further information was submitted following 
consultee comments that sought clarifications on highways and traffic 
matters, and the receipt of objections received through representations. In 
addition to the further information, the applicant has offered to accept a 
routing agreement that would be secured through a Section 106 Legal 
Agreement or Unilateral Undertaking in order to mitigate the impact on the 
communities of Ellastone and Wootton. A Section 106 Legal Agreement has 
now been drafted pending the Planning Committee’s decision. 

10. It is anticipated that HCVs delivering limestone scalpings would backhaul 
aggregate as far as possible to reduce mileage, reduce associated emissions 
and fuel costs. It is proposed that this would result in HCVs arriving at the 
site with unwashed limestone and then collecting either washed limestone, 
separated silt or site-won sand and gravel for onward transport to 
customers. 

11. The new wash plant would be situated alongside other processing plant 
within the existing plant and stockpile area (Figure 2) and would operate 
between the following hours: 

• 07:00 and 18:00 Monday to Fridays (not including Bank or Public 
holidays); and 
  

• 07:00 and 13:00 Saturdays.   

 

Page 53



  

 
 

 
Figure 2 - Site Layout Plan 

12. The wash plant would be erected on compacted ground and would take 2 to 
3 days to erect. The area required would measure 30m by 30m (including 
stockpile conveyors). The footprint of the wash plant without conveyors 
would be approximately 4m by 16m with a maximum height of 8m.  

13. The wash plant would consist of a feed conveyor fitted with a live head and 
belt weigher to remove any large oversize material. The limestone scalpings 
would be subjected to an initial scrubbing process and then separated within 
the wash plant into smaller fractions (e.g., soil, silt) and larger fractions 
(e.g., stone) where the material is washed. The material would be conveyed 
into a three-way screen. Wash water containing silt would be pumped 
through a hydro-cyclone where the silt would be separated before being 
dewatered and stockpiled adjacent to the plant. The silt and limestone 
scalpings would be moved by loading shovel to the stocking area and stored 
separately pending export. 

14. Fresh water required for the washing process would be abstracted from the 
freshwater lagoon located immediately south of the proposed wash plant. 
The fresh water would either be recirculated within the wash plant or 
discharged to the silt lagoon in the south of the quarry dependent upon the 
type of plant employed.  

15. The application is accompanied by a number of documents and plans 
including: 

• Environmental Statement 

• Non-Technical Summary 

• Transport Assessment – Technical Appendix 1 

Page 54



  

 
 

• Flood Risk and Drainage Strategy – Technical Appendix 2 

• Planning Statement 

• Location Plan  

• Site Layout Plan 

• Current and Proposed Water Management Plan 

Further Information submitted in response to request under Regulation 25 of 
the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assent) Regulations 
2017. 

• Letter dated 13 April 2022 

• Uttoxeter Highways Comments 

The Applicant’s Case 

16. The applicant contends that Cauldon Low Quarry does not have a washing 
plant or silt lagoon to enable the on-site produced limestone scalpings to be 
washed on the site. It is also contended that storage of the scalpings at 
Cauldon Low Quarry poses operational difficulties as space is limited and the 
stockpiled scalpings that do exist restrict access to the underlying mineral 
that is permitted for future extraction leading to double handling to move the 
material to other parts of the site. 

17. The ES has considered the alternatives to locating the proposed development 
at Uttoxeter Quarry as follows: 

• The applicant considers that the ‘do nothing’ option would lead to the 
limestone scalpings remaining unwashed and without processing, the 
scalpings are unsuitable as secondary aggregates for construction and 
infrastructure projects and would most likely be sent to waste recovery 
facilities for use in inert fill for which a charge would be incurred. 

• The applicant has considered alternative operational locations within 
Staffordshire and the West Midlands area in Aggregate Industries’ 
ownership. The applicant concludes that Uttoxeter Quarry is the 
preferred location due to its close proximity to Cauldon Low Quarry and 
would minimise road mileage and associated carbon emissions. Other 
operational locations are considered less favourable as it would result in 
the scalpings being transported over greater distances and therefore, 
being less cost effective and unsustainable. 

Relevant Planning History 

18. Uttoxeter quarry has been operating since 2001 and a comprehensive list of 

Page 55



  

 
 

the planning permissions for Uttoxeter Quarry is provided in Appendix 1 

Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) 

19. The findings of the ES (and the environmental further information 
subsequently received) are summarised in Appendix 2. 

Findings of Consultations 

Internal 

20. Environmental Advice Team (EAT) – no objections having reviewed the 
application documents in respect of landscape, tree protection, ecology, 
archaeology, the historic environment, and public rights of way. 

21. Highways Development Control (on behalf of the Highways Authority) 
(HA) – no objections subject to a routing agreement being secured through a 
legal agreement and the proposed development being temporary to accord 
with the current end date for quarrying operations (December 2023). 
However, if an extension is granted, and the traffic management measures 
cause concern, Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs) may need to be considered 
in the future.  

22. Flood Risk Management Team – no objections, subject to conditions to 
require the development being carried out in accordance with the Flood Risk 
and Drainage Strategy and the Current and Proposed Water Management 
Document, and the mitigation measures detailed within these documents: 

23. Planning Regulation Team – no objections subject to design details   
 of the wash plant being provided. 

External 

24. East Staffordshire Borough Council - no objections.  

25. East Staffordshire Borough Council (Environmental Health) (EHO) - 
no objections and commented that they are satisfied that the proposed 
controls should be adequate to minimise noise disturbance and unacceptable 
levels of dust. 

26. Uttoxeter Rural Parish Council – objects. The Parish Council objections 
are summarised below: 

a) The volume of HCV traffic which would have an adverse impact on an 
already congested highway network within the Parish including traffic 
associated with JCB and Alton Towers Theme Park at peak times. 

b) Quarry vehicles would try to avoid congested areas and the use of 
village roads would increase. 

Page 56



  

 
 

c) Currently, drivers use neighbouring villages as a rat-run (Crakemarsh, 
Stramshall, Beamhurst), to avoid existing congestion. 

d) The operation is likely to compound issues and the Parish are aware that 
no policing of roads and weight limits occur. If drivers are on time limits 
to deliver, they will find the quickest way through neighbouring villages. 

27. Wootton Parish Council – objects. The Parish Council objections are 
summarised below: 

a) Effect of HCV traffic along the route between Cauldon Low and Spath 
through the villages of Wootton, Mayfield and Ellastone: 

• Unsuitable roads for HCVs 

• Impact on two bridges – Ellastone and Hudford 

• Effect on highway surface 

• Effect on other highway users including pedestrians 

• Effect on junction – B5030 with A50 roundabout  

b) Alternative option to process material at Cauldon Quarry should be 
pursued.  

28. Ellastone Parish Council – objects. The Parish Council objections are 
summarised below: 

a) The effect from HCV traffic on local communities between Cauldon and 
Uttoxeter Quarry and neighbouring communities, particularly Wootton.  

b) Contend that the Traffic Assessment is misleading.  

c) Increase in HCV traffic travelling through nearby villages would be 
significant (severe).  

d) Question proposal to back haul which would not involve transporting 
mineral to Cauldon Low Quarry. 

e) Local roads are not suitable for HCV traffic (narrow roads, difficult 
bends, bridges and junctions). 

f) Effect of HCVs on Ellastone Conservation Area. 

g) Proposal should involve using ‘A’ roads (not ‘B’ roads). 

29. Denstone Parish Council – objects. The Parish endorses the comments 
made by Ellastone Parish Council. 

Page 57



  

 
 

30. Mayfield Parish Council – objects. The Parish Council objections are 
summarised below: 

a) There is no explanation of how long ‘temporary’ might be (the applicant 
has a track record of applying to extend the lifetime of operations at its 
sites); 

b) The transportation of limestone from one quarry to another over an 
18km distance is not a justifiable proposition or compatible with 
sustainability to decrease the level and impact of carbon emissions; 

c) HGVs would pass through a number of rural villages between Cauldon 
and Uttoxeter causing pollution (noise, emissions), and contributing to 
overall degradation of road surfaces and verges; 

d) The application makes no effort to establish how their operations might 
minimise the inevitable negative environmental impacts on residential 
communities; 

e) Attention has not been given to the ‘Alternatives’, far more thought 
should be given to confining all necessary activity to one site. 

31. Environment Agency (EA) - no objections having reviewed the 
environmental information (Flood Risk Assessment) and concur that the 
proposed plant will lie in flood zones 1 or 2 and therefore have no objections 
on fluvial flood risk grounds. The EA comment that the proposal is within an 
existing area identified for stockpiling and processing, as such there will be 
no change to the flood risk situation as already covered by the original 
planning application for the processing plant.  

The EA further comment that the limestone scalpings are a waste bi-product 
of the mining process and therefore the washing of these can be controlled 
by an Environmental Permit, and that there are two existing Environmental 
Permits for activities at Uttoxeter Quarry: 

• Ref. EAWML 103654 (SR2010No12 Treatment of waste to produce soil, 
soil substitutes and aggregate), and 

• EAWML 102387 (S0908 No 8: Management of inert or extractive waste 
at mine).  

The EA advise that neither Environmental Permit appears to cover the 
processing activity of washing the limestone scalpings, including the 
discharge of the effluent from the washing process and recommend that the 
applicant seeks Advanced (paid for) Pre-App advice to vary the relevant 
permit, before any of these activities commence.  

32. Natural England – have not provided specific comments on the proposals 
but have provided generic advice.  

Page 58



  

 
 

33. Canal and River Trust – advised that the proposed development lies close 
to the restoration line of the Uttoxeter Canal and recommended that the 
Caldon and Uttoxeter Canals Trust be consulted. The Caldon and Uttoxeter 
Canals Trust was subsequently consulted but no comments have been 
received. 

34. National Highways – no objection, but recommended conditions having 
reviewed the environmental information.  The recommended conditions are 
intended to control traffic movements on the trunk road network and output 
from the quarry as follows: 

• Total number of vehicles associated with import and export of limestone 
should not exceed a 5-day average of 118 HCV two-way movements per 
day (59 in and 59 out) – Monday to Friday. 

• Total quantity of mineral exported from the quarry as a whole (including 
proposed northern extension), not exceeding 600,000 tonnes, which 
includes 400,000 tonnes of current mineral operations and 200,000 
tonnes of limestone in any 12-month period. 

35. Western Power Distribution – have provided details of their electricity/ 
WPD Surf Telecom apparatus in the vicinity of the proposed development and 
have provided guidance on requirements for safe working procedures.  

36. Cadent Gas – have provided details of their apparatus in the area which 
does not indicate the presence of assets within the site development area. 

Publicity and Representations 

37. Site notice:  YES         Press notice:  YES 

38. 23 neighbour notification letters were sent out and 48 representations have 
been received.  Objections have also been received from the Local Member 
for the area (Cllr P. Atkins, OBE), JC Bamford (JCB), The Alton Towers Estate 
and JE Greenhall Ltd and from residents along the route between the two 
quarries. The representations are summarised below: 

Local Member (Cllr Philip Atkins, OBE) – The Local Member questions the 
temporary nature of the proposals in context of the life of the quarry which 
has been extended since being granted planning permission, and the need 
for new plant as the existing apparatus should be taken down when finished 
with. The lack of assessment is questioned of how extra HGV traffic would be 
accommodated at Hudford Bridge, Ramshorn, Toll Gate at Wootton both on 
the C3 or on Ellastone level at the B5030/A50 junction which would lead to 
additional traffic hold-ups and higher carbon emissions. It is commented that 
additional HCV traffic will add to an existing problem which will only add 
pressure over the years to the potential damage to property and the highway 
at Wooton and Ellastone and extend the queues of traffic on the Rocester 
Corridor. In summary, Cllr Atkins objects on the grounds that there is no 

Page 59



  

 
 

finite end to the works, no consideration given to potential off-site highway 
damage, no consideration to traffic hold-ups leading to additional carbon 
emissions, no screening of additional apparatus which should be taken down 
within the lifetime of the application. 

JC Bamford (JCB) – The Environmental Statement (ES), is flawed in that it 
does not consider the transportation of limestone scalpings from Cauldon 
Low Quarry to the application site and should have been subject to 
environmental impact assessment. It is considered inconsistent with a 
requirement for JCB to assess the route between Kevin Quarry and their 
headquarters in respect of a planning application dealt with by the County 
Council, which resulted in a requirement for JCB to enter into a Section 106 
agreement to provide a routing plan [Note: a Section 106 Legal Agreement 
has subsequently been prepared to control the routing of the traffic.]  

Concern is raised in relation to potential routes that could be used by HCVs 
and to narrow stretches of highway and road safety issues through the 
village of Alton (Conservation Area), in terms of noise, vibration, visual 
effects, severance, driver delay, pedestrian delay, pedestrian amenity, fear 
and intimidation, road / pedestrian safety, air pollution, dust and dirt and 
impact on heritage assets and the character and appearance of the 
conservation area. Similar concerns are raised for the villages of Ellastone 
and Wootton. JCB questions whether the development constitutes 
sustainable development. 

Alton Towers Estate – concern is raised to HCV traffic through the village 
of Alton that could affect the traffic flow into and out of the Alton Towers 
resort causing severe congestion at peak times. 

JE Greenhall – concern is raised on highways and amenity grounds. The 
application fails to provide for sustainable development, will add unnecessary 
additional trips of HCVs on roads/ junctions and will create environmental 
and amenity impacts in rural countryside areas with dust, emissions, 
vibration and noise. The proposed development is unnecessary and can be 
located at Cauldon Low Quarry or in a more sustainable location. The 
application is contrary to policy 4 of the Minerals Local Plan for Staffordshire. 

Residents along the route between the quarries: 

• A better solution would be to have a washing facility at Cauldon Low 
Quarry. 

• Increased traffic movements through local villages including Ellastone, 
Wootton, Ramshorn and Rocester and potential impacts to pedestrians, 
cyclists and horse riders using Class B and C roads with narrow 
footpaths and pinch-points, and impacts from traffic noise, vibration and 
dust; 

• Inadequacy of local roads and their condition to cater for HCVs and 

Page 60



  

 
 

dangers negotiating dog-leg junctions, blind bends and bridges on the 
B5417 and B5032 and the potential for congestion. 

• Suggestion that a better route be considered – A52 to A515, then A50 
to Uttoxeter. 

39. The applicant submitted further information in relation to the Environmental 
Statement to address issues raised during the initial consultation and this 
further information was publicised in accordance with Regulation 25 of the 
Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 
2017.  As well as posting additional site notices and advertising a notice in 
the press, neighbour re-notification letters were sent. Two further 
representations have been received, one from a member of the public 
withdrawing their objection, and one from JC Bamfords solicitors (Hill 
Dickinson), confirming that the objection would be resolved subject to a 
S106 agreement being secured for the routing of HCV traffic between the 
quarries along the A52, A515, A50 and B5030 (“the Specified Route”). 

The development plan policies (and proposals) and the other 
material planning considerations relevant to this decision 

40. National Planning Practice Guidance – Determining planning applications - 
How must decisions on applications for planning permission be made? 
explains that:  

‘To the extent that development plan policies are material to an 
application for planning permission the decision must be taken in 
accordance with the development plan unless there are material 
considerations that indicate otherwise. 

The National Planning Policy Framework represents up-to-date 
government planning policy and is a material consideration that must be 
taken into account where it is relevant to a planning application or 
appeal. This includes the presumption in favour of development found at 
paragraph 11 [not 14 as stated] of the [National Planning Policy] 
Framework. If decision takers choose not to follow the National Planning 
Policy Framework, where it is a material consideration, clear and 
convincing reasons for doing so are needed.’ 

41. Appendix 3 lists the development plan policies (and proposals) and the other 
material planning considerations, relevant to this decision. 

Observations 

42. Having given careful consideration to the application, environmental and 
other information, including the environmental information subsequently 
received, consultee comments and the representations received, the relevant 
development plan policies and the other material considerations, referred to 

Page 61

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/571/regulation/25/made
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/determining-a-planning-application#how-decisions-on-applications
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/2-achieving-sustainable-development
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/2-achieving-sustainable-development


  

 
 

above, the key issues are considered to be: 

• Minerals and waste planning policy considerations and other material 
planning considerations 

• Site-specific development plan policy considerations and other matters 
raised by consultees or in representations. 

• Need for the Section 106 Legal Agreement 

Minerals and waste planning policy considerations and other material 
planning considerations 

Maximising the best use of mineral resources 

43. Strategic Objective 1 of the Minerals Local Plan for Staffordshire (the 
provision of minerals to support sustainable economic development) states: 

‘to support sustainable economic development, the provision of 
minerals will:  

• aim to achieve an acceptable balance between the steady and adequate 
supply of minerals and the impact of mineral operations on local 
communities and the environment.  

• so far as is practicable, take account of the contribution that substitute, 
or secondary and recycled material can make as an alternative to 
primary minerals; and  

• ensure that important economic mineral resources are not needlessly 
sterilised.’ 

44. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) generally supports 
sustainable development and recognises the importance of minerals as an 
important element of economic growth. For example, paragraph 209 states 
that: 

‘It is essential that there is a sufficient supply of minerals to provide 
the infrastructure, buildings, energy and goods that the country needs’ 

45. The NPPF paragraph 210 promotes that planning policies should: 
 

‘… (b) so far as practicable, take account of the contribution that 
substitute, or secondary and recycled materials and minerals waste 
would make to the supply of materials, before considering extraction of 
primary materials, whilst aiming to source minerals supplies 
indigenously. 
 
‘… (f) set out criteria or requirements to ensure that permitted and 
proposed operations do not have unacceptable adverse impacts on the 

Page 62



  

 
 

natural and historic environment or human health, taking into account 
the cumulative effects of multiple impacts from individual sites and/or a 
number of sites in a locality. 
 
‘…(h) ensure that worked land is reclaimed at the earliest opportunity, 
taking account of aviation safety, and that high quality restoration and 
aftercare of mineral sites takes place’. 
 

46. The Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent Joint Waste Local Plan (WLP) (Waste as 
a resource - Policy 1.1 (general principles)) promotes the principal that waste 
is a resource and seeks to encourage the diversion of waste away from 
landfill and supports waste development which manages waste higher in the 
‘waste hierarchy’. It sets out that permission for new development of new 
waste management facilities will be granted where the applicant can 
demonstrate that the proposal accords with the principles listed below: 

 
i.  Waste is minimised;  
 
ii. Waste is used as a resource, including the formation of waste 

synergies, for example through the creation of resource recovery 
parks; 

 
iii.  The proposals represent the most sustainable option for 

management of waste as high up the “waste hierarchy” as 
feasible (Refer to Appendix 4: The Waste Hierarchy); 

 
iv.  Protection of human health and the environment.  
 
v.  Unacceptable adverse impacts, including cumulative effects, 

should be avoided and adverse impacts minimised and mitigated 
as part of the proposals;  

 
vi.  The overall (economic, social and environmental) benefits 

outweigh any material planning objections. 
 
47. WLP Policy 2.3 (Broad locations) requires waste management facilities to be 

located: 
 

…as close as possible to where the waste arises to reduce the need to 
transport waste great distances; 

48. Commentary: The applicant has sought to support an economic argument 
that promotes the proposed development. The applicant contends that 
Cauldon Low Quarry does not have a washing plant or silt lagoon to enable 
the on-site produced limestone scalpings to be washed on site and that the 
storage of the scalpings at that quarry poses operational difficulties due to 
space being limited, and that stockpiled scalpings that do exist restrict access 

Page 63



  

 
 

to the underlying mineral that is permitted for future extraction leading to 
double handling on site. In addition, the applicant has stated that a ‘do 
nothing’ option would lead to the limestone scalpings remaining unwashed 
and without processing, the scalpings are unsuitable as secondary 
aggregates for construction and infrastructure projects and would most likely 
be sent to waste recovery facilities for use as inert fill for which a charge 
would be incurred. The applicant has also considered alternative operational 
locations within Staffordshire and the West Midlands area in Aggregate 
Industries ownership and has concluded that Uttoxeter Quarry is the 
preferred location due to its close proximity to Cauldon Low Quarry. 

49. The contribution that the re-use of minerals waste (limestone scalpings) 
would make to the supply of materials is supported in minerals policy terms 
and would maximise its value both practically and economically in promoting 
its use in lieu of primary aggregates.  

50.  In respect to waste planning policy, waste would be minimised in that it 
would be recycled and achieve a more sustainable option in the management 
of waste higher up the ‘waste hierarchy’. The limestone scalpings would be 
transported 18km by road and although it would be desirable to recover the 
waste as close as possible to where it arises to reduce the need to transport 
waste great distances, the waste limestone scalpings would in any event be 
transported off the Cauldon Low Quarry site and in that respect, there would 
be no greater or lesser impact than the development proposals present. 

51. Conclusion: Having regard to the minerals and waste planning policies and 
guidance referred to above, it is reasonable to conclude that in principle the 
proposals accord with planning policy and guidance and would aid and 
support economic growth, would maximise the use of a reserve/ waste, and 
would improve the management and extraction of permitted reserves at 
Cauldon Low Quarry. The relevant site-specific impacts and related planning 
policy considerations are discussed below. 

Ancillary development 

52. Policy 4.6 of the Minerals Local Plan for Staffordshire states: 
 

‘Proposals for ancillary development within or near to a mineral site will 
be assessed in accordance with this policy and where planning 
permission is granted, it will be limited to the duration of the mineral 
site.’ 

 
 And the reasons for this policy are set out in paragraph 7.45 which states 

that: 
 

‘... Any proposals will be regarded as ancillary development where the 
principal purpose of the ancillary development would be any purpose in 
connection with the operation of the mineral site; the treatment, 

Page 64



  

 
 

preparation for sale, consumption or utilisation of minerals won or 
brought to the surface at that mineral site, or the storage or removal 
from the mineral site of such minerals, their products or waste materials 
derived from them. Policy 4 requires that ancillary development should 
be limited to the duration of the mineral site and that the impacts of 
proposed development will be assessed in accordance with Policy 4.’ 

 
53. Commentary: The principle of ancillary development at quarries is well 

established and appropriate ancillary development often constitutes 
‘permitted development’. Planning permission has previously been granted at 
the quarry for ancillary development to import, stockpile and process waste 
glass (25,000 tonnes per year - 20 daily vehicle movements) to produce 
recycled aggregate blended with on-site derived mineral (ref: ES.11/10/524 
MW dated 06 January 2012). The principle is not dissimilar, however, in this 
case, most of the limestone scalpings would be washed at Uttoxeter Quarry 
as a single product with a proportion of the washed limestone to be mixed 
with site-won sand and gravel in order to provide flexibility and a saleable 
product for customers. Vehicle movements would be significantly greater 
than that related to the waste glass permission which expired on 30 
November 2016. 

 
54. As explained in the Introduction earlier, the current planning permission 

required the site to cease mineral extraction by 30 November 2016. 
However, the Planning Committee has approved an application to extend the 
cessation date to 30 November 2023, pending the completion of a Section 
106 Legal Agreement (‘the 2016 Section 106’). The 2016 Section 106 is 
nearing completion, meanwhile sand and gravel extraction has continued and 
is expected to cease by the end of 2022.  Therefore, the recommendation is 
that the 2016 Section 106 is completed so that the planning permission can 
be issued before the limestone scalpings permission is issued. 

 
55. The site-specific impacts of the development are presented later, but in 

terms of an ancillary development on the site, it would be short term and 
would be limited to the duration of the mineral site. 

 
56. The new wash plant would be situated adjacent to existing plant within the 

quarry and would operate in conjunction with existing operations carried out 
at the quarry. As such, the proposed operations would be similar in nature to 
already permitted operations. The proposed development can be considered 
as ancillary to the permitted operations at the quarry, in that a proportion of 
the washed limestone may be blended with site-won sand and gravel and 
therefore, related to the treatment, preparation for sale, consumption or 
utilisation of minerals won or brought to the surface at Uttoxeter Quarry. 

 
57. Conclusion: Having regard to the relevant site-specific policies, it is 

reasonable to conclude that the proposed development does constitute 
ancillary development. The site-specific development plan policy 

Page 65

https://planning.agileapplications.co.uk/staffordshire/application-details/20052
https://planning.agileapplications.co.uk/staffordshire/application-details/20052


  

 
 

considerations are discussed below.  

Site-specific development plan policy considerations and other 
matters raised by consultees and in representations 

58. Policy 4 of the Minerals Plan for Staffordshire in general seeks to minimise 
the impact of mineral development. Policy 4.1 states: 

‘In assessing the impact of proposals for mineral development on 
people, local communities, and the environment, where relevant, the 
following environmental considerations will be taken into account 
(summarised as relevant):  

a) Noise 

b) Air quality 

e) Traffic on the highway network;  

n) Water environment 

p) Cumulative effects from a single site, or from a series of sites in a 
locality. 

59. Policy 4.2 of the Minerals Local Plan for Staffordshire states that: 

‘Where unacceptable adverse effects cannot be avoided, adequate 
mitigation should be demonstrated. As a last resort, where unacceptable 
adverse effects cannot be avoided or adequately mitigated, 
compensatory measures will be taken into account.’ 

60. Policy 4.3 of the Minerals Local Plan (Overall Assessment), states that: 

‘Having assessed the impacts of the proposals for mineral development 
and the mitigation and / or compensatory measures, permission will 
only be granted where it has been demonstrated that there are no 
unacceptable adverse impacts on human health, general amenity and 
the natural and historic environment, or the material planning benefits 
of the proposals outweigh the material planning objections.’ 

61. Paragraph 211(b) of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) seeks 
to: 

‘ensure that there are no unacceptable adverse impacts on the natural 
and historic environment, human health or aviation safety, and take into 
account the cumulative effect of multiple impacts from individual sites 
and/or from a number of sites in a locality’; 

62. Commentary: In general, no objections have been raised by technical 
consultees to the proposed operations, subject to conditions.  However, 

Page 66



  

 
 

concerns have been received from a Local Member for the area, the local 
Parish Council (Uttoxeter Rural), the neighbouring Parish Councils along the 
initial proposed route between the two quarries, Ellastone, Denstone, 
Wootton and Mayfield, and in the individual representations regarding the 
impact of traffic to be generated by the proposals. The comments remained 
mainly unchanged after a second round of consultation and notification to the 
further information submitted to update the Transport Assessment.  

 
63. National Highways who are responsible for management of Trunk Roads have 

recommend conditions to control the number of traffic movements per day 
(59 in and 59 out), and to restrict the throughput of limestone scalpings to 
200,000 tonnes per year. 

 
64. Staffordshire County Council’s Highways Development Control Team (on 

behalf of the Local Highway Authority) had initially requested further 
information to support the submitted Transport Assessment (TA). In 
reviewing the further information submitted to inform the TA, the Team 
recommended that HCV traffic routing is controlled and secured through the 
legal agreement which has been offered by the applicant.  

 
65. The further information that was submitted by the applicant sought to 

address matters that had been raised by consultees and in representations 
received and included additional information addressing issues and options 
relating to traffic routing, a breakdown and analysis of trip generation and 
clarifications relating to vehicle sizes and opportunities for backhauling. The 
further information also offered acceptance to enter into a legal agreement 
to secure routing arrangements. 

 
66. In terms of the temporary nature of the proposed operations (questioned by 

a Local Member), the applicant attests that the quarry currently has 
permission to continue mineral extraction until 30 November 2023 with 
restoration to be completed by 30 November 2025. Dependent upon the 
decision on the parallel planning application (SCC/21/0025/FULL-ES), for a 
northern extension to the quarry, if approved, this would extend the 
temporary period for the proposed operations by 2.5 to 3 years. 

 
67. The main thrust of the representations relates to the impacts of HCV traffic 

movements using narrow roads, difficult bends and bridges along routes 
passing through local villages. In addressing the concerns, the applicant has 
offered to enter into a legal agreement to secure a routing plan that would 
control HCVs travelling to and from the wash plant via the A52, A515 and 
A50. The proposed route is provided in Figure 3 below. 

Page 67



  

 
 

 
Figure 3 – Proposed Route for HCVs 
 
68. The routing plan proposed by the applicant to be secured in a S106 does 

address the concerns raised by residents of Ellastone, Wootton and Rocester, 
and the Alton Towers resort as the proposed route would not pass through 
those villages. In respect to the village of Mayfield, the route would use the 
main A road (A52) through the village. The proposed change of route has 
resulted in a response from one resident withdrawing their objection and a 
response from JC Bamford who are minded to withdraw their objections 
subject to the routing plan being secured by a legal agreement. 

 
69. Conclusion: Having regard to the site-specific development plan policies and 

the matters raised by consultees and representations referred to above, it is 
reasonable to conclude that, subject the conditions and Section 106 Legal 
Agreement recommended below, the proposed development would not give 
rise to unacceptable adverse effects.  

 

Need for a Section 106 Legal Agreement 

70. Paragraph 55 to the NPPF explains that: 
 

‘local planning authorities should consider whether otherwise 

Page 68



  

 
 

unacceptable development could be made acceptable through the use of 
conditions or planning obligations. Planning obligations should only be 
used where it is not possible to address unacceptable impacts through a 
planning condition’. 
 

71. Paragraph 57 explains states: 
 

‘Planning obligations must only be sought where they meet all of the 
following tests: 
 
(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 
(b) directly related to the development; and 
(c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.’ 

72. These are also legal tests by virtue of the Community Infrastructure Levy 
Regulations 2010 (regulation 122). The 2010 Regulations also prevent the 
use of a planning obligation to fund infrastructure if a Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) has been adopted in the area (regulation 123). East 
Staffordshire Borough Council have not yet adopted a CIL Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL). 

73. Commentary: It is recommended that the following undertakings to manage 
heavy commercial vehicle (HCV) routing on the public highway and driver 
behavior be secured by a Section 106 Legal Agreement (S106). The reasons 
why the undertakings meet the tests referred to above are explained below: 

 
a) To follow the ‘specified route’ other than in case of emergencies (road 

closure etc); 
 
b) To display notices showing the ‘specified route’ on the development site; 
 
c) To instruct all drivers of vehicles (including any employees or 

contractors) accessing and/or egressing the development site to act in a 
considerate manner towards other road users and to avoid driving over 
roadside verges; 

 
d) To instruct all HCV drivers at regular intervals to use the Specified Route 

only (except in an emergency), to act in a considerate manner towards 
other road users and to avoid driving over roadside verges; 

 
e) To include a condition in contracts with HCV drivers to access and egress 

the development site in accordance with the Specified Route only 
(except in an emergency) to act in a considerate manner towards other 
road users and to avoid driving over roadside verges; 

 
f) To ensure any HCV driver who is found not to be using the Specified 

Route (except in an emergency situation), being subject to disciplinary 

Page 69

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2010/9780111492390/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2010/9780111492390/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2010/9780111492390/regulation/122
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2010/9780111492390/regulation/123


  

 
 

action (in so far as the law permits) to include: 
 

• Verbal warning (first instance) 
 
• Written warning and ban for three working days (second instance) 
 
• Final written warning and ban for one month (third instance) 
 
• Permanent ban (fourth instance) 

 
These undertakings would ensure that HCVs accessing and/ or egressing the 
application site would do so via the ‘specified route’ and in a manner that 
would not lead to adverse environmental impacts, in accordance with the 
MLP (Policy 4) and the NPPF (Section 9). 
 

74. Conclusion: Having regard to the policies and guidance referred to above, it 
is reasonable to conclude that the undertakings within the proposed Section 
106 Legal Agreement are necessary; directly relate to the development; and 
are fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the proposed 
development. 

Overall Conclusion 

75. Overall, as an exercise of judgement, taking the relevant up-to-date 
development plan policies as a whole and having given consideration to the 
application, the supporting and environmental information, including the 
information subsequently received, the consultee comments, the 
representations and the other material considerations, all referred to above, 
it is reasonable to conclude that the proposed development accords with the 
development plan and as such represents sustainable development, and 
there are no clear and convincing reasons to indicate that the application for 
planning permission should not be permitted. 

Recommendation 

Permit the proposed development for the importation and temporary storage of 
limestone scalpings with the erection and use of an aggregate washing plant 
subject to: 

a) The applicant first completing the Section 106 Legal Agreement to allow the 
2016 planning permission ref. ES.16/15/524 MW to be issued. 

 
b) The applicant and all other persons with a relevant interest in the land (for 

the purposes of Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990) 
signing a Section 106 Legal Agreement - the heads of terms to include those 
listed below; and, 

 
c) Conditions including those listed below. 

Page 70



  

 
 

The Section 106 Legal Agreement heads of terms to include: 

1. Not to permit or allow Heavy Commercial Vehicles (HCVs) accessing and/or 
egressing the Development other than in accordance with the Specified 
Route (except in case of emergencies); 

 
2. To display notices at the Land showing the Specified Route; 
 
3. To instruct all drivers of vehicles (including any employees or contractors) 

accessing and/or egressing the development site to act in a considerate 
manner towards other road users and to avoid driving over roadside verges; 

 
4. To instruct all HCV drivers at regular intervals to use the Specified Route 

only (except in an emergency), to act in a considerate manner towards other 
road users and to avoid driving over roadside verges; 

 
5. To include a condition in contracts with HCV companies to access and egress 

the development site in accordance with the Specified Route only (except in 
an emergency) to act in a considerate manner towards other road users and 
to avoid driving over roadside verges; 

 
6. Any HCV driver who is found not to be using the Specified Route (except in 

an emergency situation), being subject to disciplinary action (in so far as the 
law permits) to include: 

 
• Verbal warning (first instance) 

 
• Written warning and ban for three working days (second instance) 

 
• Final written warning and ban for one month (third instance) 

 
• Permanent ban (fourth instance) 

The conditions to include: 

1. To define the permission with reference to documents and plans. 

Commencement 

2. To commence within 3 years of the date of the planning permission and to 
require notice of commencement of the development first being brought into 
use.  

 
Waste Types 
 
3.  No waste material to be treated or stored at the Site other than limestone 

scalpings derived from Cauldon Low Quarry. 
 

Page 71



  

 
 

Dates for Cessation of Development, Restoration and Expiry of the 
Permission 
 
4. To require the cessation of development to accord with the cessation of the 

winning and working of sand and gravel operations at the quarry. 
 
5. To require the restoration of the Site to be completed no later than 12 

months after the cessation of development which shall include the removal of 
all plant and associated equipment and stockpiles, and to accord with the 
approved Restoration and Aftercare Scheme for the Quarry. 

 
6. To define the expiry of the permission to be when the restoration and 

aftercare of the Site has been completed in accordance with the latest 
approved Restoration and Aftercare Scheme for the quarry.  

 
Detailed requirements 
 
7. To require the submission of details of the washing plant and implementation 

of approved details. 
 
Management of Site Operations  
 
Hours of Operation 
 
8. To limit the operation of the washing plant to: 
 

07:00 and 18:00 Monday to Fridays (not including Bank or Public 
holidays); and, 
07:00 and 13:00 Saturdays. 

 
Importation of Limestone Scalpings 
 
9. To limit the import of limestone scalpings to 200,000 tonnes per year. 
 
Site Access and Traffic Movements 
 
10. To limit HCV traffic movements to a maximum of 59 movements in and 59 

movements out per full working day. 
 
11. To define the access to be used by HCVs. 
 
12. To require all HCVs to turn left when leaving the Site. 
 
13. To require that no vehicle associated with the development leaves the Site 

whereby mud, dirt or deleterious material is deposited on the public 
highway. 

 

Page 72



  

 
 

14. To require loaded HCVs to be sheeted. 
 
Environmental Management 
 
Water Environment/Management 
 
15. To require the development to be carried out in accordance with the Flood 

Risk and Drainage Strategy and the Current and Proposed Water 
Management Document. 

 
Noise 
 
16. To accord with existing noise limits for the Plant Site (extant planning 

permission). 
 
17. To require non- intrusive reversing alarms to be used on vehicles and plant 

capable of using such alarms. 
 
Air Quality and Dust 
 
18. To accord with existing air quality and dust management measures for the 

Plant Site (extant planning permission) 
 
Record Keeping 
 
19. To require records of HCV movements, the quantities of limestone scalpings 

imported to the Site, the operating hours, and any complaints and remedial 
actions taken. 

 
 
 
 

Case Officer: Graham Allen - Tel: (07866) 912690 
email: graham.allen2@staffordshire.gov.uk  

 
The list of background papers for this report is available on request by 

email sent to planning@stafforshire.gov.uk. 
  

Page 73

mailto:graham.allen2@staffordshire.gov.uk
mailto:planning@stafforshire.gov.uk


  

 
 

Appendix 1 – Relevant Planning History  

• ES.23992/01 dated 05 June 2000 – for the winning and working of sand and 
gravel. This planning permission allowed the extraction of 4.8 million tonnes 
of sand and gravel over a period of 12 years (until 31 December 2012).  

 
• ES.05/10/524 M dated 20 October 2005 – for change of use to permit the 

importation of 20,000 tonnes (approx) of as-dug sand and gravel for 
stockpiling, processing and subsequent sale over a temporary period of 12 
weeks.  
  

• ES.05/13/524 M dated 14 November 2005 – to not comply with conditions 6, 
29 and 44 of planning permission ES.23992/01 to change the phasing 
method working from wet to dry and to revise the restoration of the site. 

 
• ES.06/29/524 M dated 19 October 2006 – to erect 5 aggregate storage bays 

and to permit the importation of type 1 granite. 
 

• ES.06/31/524 M dated 22 December 2006 – for installation of replacement 
sand plant. 
 

• ES.06/34/524 M dated 23 April 2007 – for the erection of 5 aggregate 
storage bays, the importation, storage, and stockpiling of type 1 aggregate, 
building sand and bagged cement and direct sales off-site of aggregated, 
building sand, bagged cement and surplus topsoil. 
 

• ES.07/02/524 M dated 19 February 2007 – for installation of additional office 
cabin 
 

• ES.08/02/524 M dated 31 July 2009 – to extend Uttoxeter Quarry to the 
north to extract approximately 200,000 tonnes of sand and gravel. 
 

• ES.09/05/524 M dated 23 December 2010 – to extend Uttoxeter Quarry 
(Dove extension), to extract approximately 3 million tonnes of sand and 
gravel with restoration to agriculture and water-based recreation and nature 
conservation. 
 

• ES.09/09/524 M dated 29 October 2009 – for erection of 5 aggregate storage 
bays, the importation, storage and stockpiling of aggregates, building sand 
and bagged cement and surplus topsoils. 

 
• ES.11/10/524 MW dated 06 January 2012 – to import, stockpile and process 

waste glass to produce a recycled aggregate. 
 
• ES.11/13/524 MW dated 13 December 2011 – to vary conditions 1, 2, 8, 9, 

10, 32, 38, 39 and 42 of planning permission ES.09/05/524 M. 
 

Page 74

https://planning.agileapplications.co.uk/staffordshire/application-details/20696
https://planning.agileapplications.co.uk/staffordshire/application-details/19816
https://planning.agileapplications.co.uk/staffordshire/application-details/19819
https://planning.agileapplications.co.uk/staffordshire/application-details/19872
https://planning.agileapplications.co.uk/staffordshire/application-details/19874
https://planning.agileapplications.co.uk/staffordshire/application-details/19877
https://planning.agileapplications.co.uk/staffordshire/application-details/19886
https://planning.agileapplications.co.uk/staffordshire/application-details/19923
https://planning.agileapplications.co.uk/staffordshire/application-details/19953
https://planning.agileapplications.co.uk/staffordshire/application-details/19958
https://planning.agileapplications.co.uk/staffordshire/application-details/20052
https://planning.agileapplications.co.uk/staffordshire/application-details/20056


  

 
 

• ES.16/15/524 MW – reported to County Council Planning Committee 16 
December 2016 (Permitted subject to signing of S106 legal agreement – not 
yet completed) 
 

• SCC/21/0025/FULL-ES – dated 20 August 2021 for a northern extension to 
Uttoxeter Quarry for the winning and working of sand and gravel with 
restoration to agriculture, water-based recreation and nature conservation, 
with the continued use of existing access, site offices, processing plant, silt 
lagoons and ancillary infrastructure.  This application is to be reported to the 
Planning Committee at the same meeting as this report.  

 
• A Section 106 Legal Agreement (S106) - dated 1 June 2000 accompanied the 

permission ref: ES.23992/01 and this included undertakings for off-site 
highway works in association with creation of an access onto the B5030 and 
extended aftercare for nature conservation afteruses.  

 
Return to Relevant Planning History 

 

Appendix 2: Summary of the findings of the Environmental 
Statement 

Section 1 – Introduction 

This section sets out the context of the planning application and provides details 
concerning the applicant and project team for the preparation of environmental 
statement (ES) and sets out the summary context of the application and site 
history. 

Section 2 – Site Appraisal 

This section describes the application site, its location and setting. 

Section 3 – Description of Development 

This section describes the proposed development to erect a wash plant at 
Uttoxeter Quarry and explains the operations involved in transporting limestone 
scalpings from Cauldon Low Quarry, the washing process, traffic movements, 
operating hours, employment and a summary for foul drainage and utilities.  

Section 4 – Planning Policy Context 

This section sets out relevant policy in the Development Plan which consists of the 
Minerals Local Plan for Staffordshire (2015 to 2030), the East Staffordshire 
Borough Local Plan (2012 – 2031) and Uttoxeter Neighbourhood Plan (2012 – 
2031). Material considerations are referenced including the National Planning Policy 
Framework. Having regard to the proposals, the Development Plan and other 
material considerations, this section lists the key policy considerations for the 

Page 75

https://planning.agileapplications.co.uk/staffordshire/application-details/20342
https://planning.agileapplications.co.uk/staffordshire/application-details/28360


  

 
 

application. 

Section 5 – Environmental Impact Assessment 

This section explains the need for the environmental impact assessment and 
introduces the main environmental considerations for the proposals. 

Section 6 – Alternatives 

Whilst there is no requirement to consider alternatives, this section sets out the 
approach to consideration of alternatives to the proposal. It is concluded that the 
proposals, as submitted, represent the preferred option and a ‘do nothing’ option 
would result in the limestone scalpings remaining unwashed and their potential use 
as a secondary aggregate would be lost. 
 
Section 7 – Transport 
 
This section sets out the policy context and the potential for impacts and baseline 
conditions which have been assessed within a Transport Assessment (TA) which is 
included as an appendix to the ES.  
 
The TA focuses on highway capacity and road safety. It considers the proposed 
development in the context of existing site operations and non-site traffic and 
concludes that the impacts would not be ‘severe’. The ES concludes overall that 
the proposed development and site operations would not have unacceptable direct 
or indirect impact on the population and human health, biodiversity, land, soil, 
water, air and climate, material assets, cultural heritage and the landscape or the 
interaction between these factors in accordance with the EIA Regulations. 
 
Section 8 – Noise 
 
This section considers the potential for significant noise effects associated with the 
proposed development. It sets out the policy context, the baseline conditions, and 
the potential for impact. 
 
As the proposed wash plant is to be located adjacent to existing aggregate 
processing plant and remote from any noise sensitive dwellings, the noise 
contribution from the plant is concluded to be negligible. It is concluded overall 
that the proposed development would not give rise to levels of noise which would 
exceed the existing noise limits set at sensitive receptors and would not give rise 
to unacceptable levels of noise which could adversely affect nearby receptors or 
the surrounding environment and in terms of noise, would not have any 
unacceptable direct or indirect impacts on population and human health, 
biodiversity, land, soils, water, air and climate, material assets, cultural heritage 
and the landscape, or the interaction between these factors in accordance with the 
EIA Regulations. 
 
Section 9 – Air Quality and Dust 

Page 76



  

 
 

 
This section considers fugitive emissions and mitigation. Its sets out the policy 
context, the baseline conditions and potential for impact.  
 
The proposed washing process is a wet process and the potential for impact is 
considered to be ‘very low’, though the movement of HCVs across the site and the 
manoeuvring of aggregate to and from the wash plant, together with the loading 
and unloading of vehicles has the potential to generate dust, as does as dust 
generated from stockpiles of aggregate within the site. The proposed development 
would be carried out in accordance with the site’s existing air quality and dust 
management measures set out within the approved dust management scheme. 
Given that the effective mitigation measures employed at the quarry would 
continue to be employed, it is concluded that no significant effects in terms of air 
quality or dust would result from the proposals and overall, in terms of air quality 
and dust, the proposed development and operations would not have an 
unacceptable direct or indirect impacts on population and human health, 
biodiversity, land, soils, water, air and climate, material assets, cultural heritage 
and the landscape, or the interaction between these factors in accordance with the 
EIA Regulations. 
 
10 – Flood Risk and Drainage 
 
This section considers the potential effects of the proposed development on the 
flood risk and surface water drainage within and surrounding the site. It sets out 
the policy context, the baseline conditions and the potential for impact.  In support 
of the application, a Flood Risk and Drainage Strategy is included as an appendix 
to the ES. 
 
The wash plant location lies in Flood Zone 1, but close to Flood Zone 2. The risk of 
groundwater flooding occurring at the natural ground surface at the site is 
expected to be ‘high’, particularly in areas which are close to the River Tean, given 
the shallow groundwater table, though it is not considered to pose a risk to the site 
or its operations. It is considered that there is a residual risk from reservoir 
flooding to the wash plant, though the risk of a reservoir failure resulting in the 
loss of life is assessed as being ‘very low’. 
 
The proposed wash plant would have a negligible footprint and would be sited on 
compacted ground with most of the plant on raised supports and would not result 
in an increase in the impermeable area within the site and material stockpiles 
would be located along with other stockpiles. It is considered that the proposals 
would not impact on the current flood risk status of the site and the future flood 
risk from all sources is concluded to be ‘low’. 
 
The proposed development would not result in any changes to surface water 
drainage from the application site. Surface water is currently monitored at 
Uttoxeter Quarry, including the discharge point into the River Tean and monitoring 
ensures that the on-site activities do not adversely affect the surface water within 

Page 77



  

 
 

the quarry surface water bodies, the River Tean or watercourses downstream of 
the site, including the River Dove. 
 
The Flood Risk and Drainage Strategy concludes that the proposed development 
would not impact on the current flood risk status or the future flood risk from all 
sources and would not have an unacceptable effect on surface water drainage 
within or within the vicinity of the site and overall in terms of flood risk and surface 
water drainage, the proposed development and operations would not have an 
unacceptable direct or indirect impacts on population and human health, 
biodiversity, land, soils, water, air and climate, material assets, cultural heritage 
and the landscape, or the interaction between these factors in accordance with the 
EIA Regulations. 
 
11 – Landscape and Visual Impact 
 
This section considers the potential for landscape and visual impacts and sets out 
the policy context, the baseline conditions and potential for impact. 
 
The site does not fall within any areas or designations which seek to conserve or 
enhance areas or features of landscape interest. Views of the proposed site area 
from visual receptors outside that site are limited by seeded bunds and perimeter 
vegetation. Public rights of way run close to the application site that do have views 
into the site. It is considered that the only change in terms of potential effects on 
landscape character and visual receptors would be of the wash plant and 
stockpiles. 
 
In terms of landscape and visual impact, it is concluded that the proposed 
development and operations would not have an unacceptable direct or indirect 
impact on the landscape and overall, in landscape terms, would not have an 
unacceptable direct or indirect impact on population and human health, 
biodiversity, land, soils, water, air and climate, material assets, cultural heritage 
and the landscape, or the interaction between these factors in accordance with the 
EIA Regulations. 
 
12 - Ecology 
 
As the site is an existing quarry and the proposed wash plant would be sited within 
the current mineral processing area and no other changes are proposed, it is 
concluded that the proposed development would not have an unacceptable impact 
on the ecology of the site or local area and overall, in terms of ecology and nature 
conservation, would not have an unacceptable direct or indirect impacts on 
population and human health, biodiversity, land, soils, water, air and climate, 
material assets, cultural heritage and the landscape, or the interaction between 
these factors in accordance with the EIA Regulations. 
 
13 – Public Rights of Way 
 

Page 78



  

 
 

This section considers the potential for significant effects on the Public Rights of 
Way (PROW) that lie within and close to the site and sets out the policy context, 
the baseline conditions and potential for impact. 
 
Sections of PROW Uttoxeter Rural 89 and Uttoxeter Rural 84 lie to the west of the 
site. On the southern side of the River Tean, lie Uttoxeter Town 34 and Uttoxeter 
Town 38, the latter of which runs through the centre of the application area along 
the River Tean. In the east of the application site run footpath Uttoxeter Town 38 
joins footpaths Uttoxeter Rural 28(a), Uttoxeter Town 39 and Uttoxeter Town 35 
which form a north and south route running through both operational and restored 
areas of the wider quarry. 
 
No PROW would be required to be diverted and only glimpsed views of the 
proposed wash plant would be gained from surrounding footpaths. Overall, in 
terms of public rights of way, it is concluded that the proposed development would 
not have an unacceptable direct or indirect impact on population and human 
health, biodiversity, land, soils, water, air and climate, material assets, cultural 
heritage and the landscape, or the interaction between these factors in accordance 
with the EIA Regulations. 
 
14 – Climate Change 
 
This section considers the potential effects of climate change and sets out the 
mitigation measures proposed to minimise the likelihood of significant 
environmental effects. It also considers how the proposed development can 
minimise its contribution towards climate change through reducing emissions and 
energy consumption. It sets out the policy context, the baseline conditions and 
potential for impact. 
 
It is assessed that the development proposals for the wash plant would not impact 
on the current flood risk status of the site and the future flood risk from all sources 
is concluded to be ‘low’. 
 
In terms of transportation of limestone scalpings from Cauldon Low Quarry to 
Uttoxeter Quarry, it is not possible to transport materials using sustainable modes 
of transport, for example rail or water. However, where HCVs deliver limestone 
scalpings, they would back haul loads as far as possible so that either site-won 
sand and gravel or washed limestone/ silt material would be collected and 
transported to customers minimising the number of empty vehicles leaving the site 
and reduce HCV numbers as far as practicable. All mobile plant and machinery 
would be regularly serviced, maintained and switched off when not in use. In terms 
of vehicles and emissions, since the Euro VI emission standards came into force in 
2014, all vehicles supplied after September 2014 must comply with the Euro VI 
requirements. The applicant has been strategically replacing HCVs older than 2014 
within the fleet at Uttoxeter Quarry. 
 

Page 79



  

 
 

It is concluded in terms of meeting the challenge of climate change, that the 
proposed development and operations would not have an unacceptable direct or 
indirect impact on population and human health, biodiversity, land, soils, water, air 
and climate, material assets, cultural heritage and the landscape, or the interaction 
between these factors in accordance with the EIA Regulations. 
 
15 – Cumulative Impact Assessment 
 
This section considers the cumulative impact of the proposed development and 
sets out the policy context, baseline conditions and potential impact. The impacts 
that development could potentially have on the site and surroundings have been 
assessed throughout the ES and associated technical appendices. 
 
It is concluded that no sites or developments that were considered likely to result 
in a significant cumulative impact with the proposed development site were 
identified and therefore considered that significant cumulative impacts with other 
developments would be ‘most unlikely’ and overall, given the location of the site 
and the conclusions of the individual topic areas, it is also anticipated that 
significant in-combination effects from the proposed development would be ‘most 
unlikely’. 
 
16 – Conclusions 
 
It is considered that the proposals are environmentally acceptable and support the 
economic, social and environmental roles of sustainable development required in 
the NPPF. Overall, the findings of the ES suggest that the development would be 
environmentally acceptable and accord with the Development Plan. 
 

Further Information – Introduction 

Following initial consultation on the planning application and the accompanying 
Environmental Statement further information was requested from the applicant. 
This further information was subject to consultation and publicised in accordance 
with the relevant regulations during May – June 2022. 
 
Further Information – (Flood Risk) 
In response to comments from the Environment Agency and the Staffordshire 
County Council’s Flood Risk Team (as the Lead Local Flood Authority), the 
applicant accepted wording drafted by the County Flood Risk Team for a condition 
to be included on a planning permission. 
 
Further Information – (Traffic and Highways) 
 
In response to comments from National Highways and the Staffordshire County 
Council’s Highways Development Control Team (as the Highways Authority), and 
comments provided in representations, information was submitted to update the 
Transport Assessment (Uttoxeter Highways Comments prepared by AECOM). The 

Page 80



  

 
 

document relates to clarifications about HCV backhauling, the size of HCV vehicles 
and trip generation, and issues and options for traffic routing to minimise the 
impacts from traffic movements between the quarry at Cauldon Lowe and 
Uttoxeter Quarry. The applicant offered acceptance to enter into a legal agreement 
to secure an alternative route for HCVs between Cauldon Low Quarry and 
Uttoxeter Quarry. 
 
Further consultation was carried out that resulted in conditions being 
recommended to limit HCV traffic movements and throughput of limestone 
scalpings from National Highways. The response to further information received 
from the Highways Development Control Team resulted in the acceptance to 
secure the management for the routing of HCV traffic through a Section 106 
agreement. Appropriate conditions are recommended in the committee report and 
a Section 106 agreement is being prepared. 
 
Return to the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) section of the 
report 
 

Appendix 3 - The development plan policies (and proposals) 
and the other material planning considerations, relevant to this 
decision 

The development plan policies and proposals 

The Minerals Local Plan for Staffordshire (2015 - 2030)  
(adopted 16 February 2017) 
 
• Policy 4: Minimising the impact of mineral development  
• Policy 4.6: Ancillary development 
• Policy 6: Restoration of Mineral Sites  
• Strategic Objective 1 (The sustainable economic development of minerals) 
• Strategic Objective 2 (Acceptable locations for mineral sites) 
• Objective 3 (Operating to high environmental standards); and, 
• Strategic Objective 4 (Restoration that enhances local amenity and the 

environment) 
 
A partial review of the Minerals Local Plan for Staffordshire to check conformity 
with the revised National Planning Policy Framework took place in February 2019. 
The review concluded that the policies in the Minerals Local Plan conform with the 
revised NPPF and therefore they continue to carry weight in the determination of 
planning applications for mineral development.  
 
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Joint Waste Local Plan (2010 – 2026) 
(adopted 22 March 2013): 
 
• Policy 1: Waste as a resource 

Page 81

http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/mlp
https://apps2.staffordshire.gov.uk/scc/TrimDocProvider/?ID=002/20/20/050674
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/wlp
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/wlp
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/wlp


  

 
 

o Policy 1.1 General principles 
o Policy 2.3 (Broad locations) 

 
A 5-year review of the Waste Local Plan, completed in December 2018, concluded 
that there is no need to update the plan policies and therefore they continue to 
carry weight in the determination of planning applications for waste development.  
 
 
East Staffordshire District Local Plan (2012-2031) (adopted 15 October 2015)  
 
• Principle 1 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development;  
• Policy SP1 - Approach to Sustainable Development;  
• Policy SP24 - High Quality Design;  
• Policy SP27 - Climate Change, Water Body Management and Flooding;  
• Detailed Policy 1 - Design of New Development; and,  
• Detailed Policy 7 - Pollution and Contamination.  
 
Uttoxeter Neighbourhood Plan (2012 – 2031) (Made March 2017) 
 
• Policy E2 – Landscape and Setting; 

The other material planning considerations 

• National Planning Policy Framework (updated 20 July 2021): 
 

o Section 1: Introduction 
o Section 2: Achieving sustainable development 
o Section 4: Decision-making 
o Section 6: Building a strong, competitive economy 
o Section 8: Promoting healthy communities 
o Section 9: Promoting sustainable transport 
o Section 11: Making effective use of land 
o Section 12 Achieving well-designed places 
o Section 14: Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and 

coastal change; 
o Section 17: Facilitating the sustainable use of minerals 

 
• Planning Practice Guidance  
 

o Design 
o Environmental Impact Assessment 
o Flood risk and coastal change 
o Health and wellbeing 
o Light pollution 
o Minerals 
o Natural environment 
o Neighbourhood planning 

Page 82

https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/environment/planning/policy/thedevelopmentplan/wastelocalplan/The-Review-of-the-Staffordshire-and-Stoke-on-Trent-Joint-Waste-Local-Plan-2010-2026.aspx
http://www.eaststaffsbc.gov.uk/planning/planning-policy/local-plan-2012-2031
http://www.eaststaffsbc.gov.uk/sites/default/files/docs/planning/planningpolicy/neighplanning/uttoxeter/UNP_Made_March17_080317.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/1-introduction
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/2-achieving-sustainable-development
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/4-decision-making
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/6-building-a-strong-competitive-economy
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/8-promoting-healthy-and-safe-communities
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/9-promoting-sustainable-transport
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/11-making-effective-use-of-land
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/12-achieving-well-designed-places
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/14-meeting-the-challenge-of-climate-change-flooding-and-coastal-change
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/17-facilitating-the-sustainable-use-of-minerals
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/design
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/environmental-impact-assessment
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-and-coastal-change
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/health-and-wellbeing
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/light-pollution
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/minerals
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/natural-environment
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/neighbourhood-planning--2


  

 
 

o Noise 
o Planning obligations 
o Transport evidence bases in plan making and decision taking 
o Travel Plans, Transport Assessments and Statements 
o Use of planning conditions 
o Waste  
 Determining planning applications 
 Regulatory regimes 
o Water supply, wastewater and water quality 

 
• National Planning Policy for Waste (published on 16 October 2014) 
 

o Determining planning applications (paragraph 7) 
o Appendix A - the waste hierarchy – in descending order - prevention; 

preparing for re-use; recycling; other recovery; disposal 
o Appendix B – locational criteria: 
 

a) protection of water quality and resources and flood risk 
management  

b) land instability  
c) landscape and visual impacts  
d) nature conservation 
e) conserving the historic environment  
f) traffic and access  
g) air emissions  
h) odours  
i) vermin and birds  
j) noise, light and vibration  
k) litter  
l) potential land use conflict 

 
 
 
Return to Observation section of the report. 
 

Page 83

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/noise--2
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/planning-obligations
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/transport-evidence-bases-in-plan-making-and-decision-taking
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/travel-plans-transport-assessments-and-statements
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/use-of-planning-conditions
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/waste
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/waste#determining-planning-applications
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/waste#regulatory-regimes
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/water-supply-wastewater-and-water-quality
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/364759/141015_National_Planning_Policy_for_Waste.pdf




SK.096 351 SCC/21/0047/FULL-ES

Aggregate Industries UK Limited. Importation and 
temporary storage of limestone scalpings with the 
erection and use of an aggregate washing plant,
Uttoxeter Quarry, Spath, Uttoxeter.

18/01/22 1/10000

Application Site Boundary.

Legend.

Existing Permitted Quarry.

Beningbrough
House

Crakemarsh
Home 
Farm

Crakemarsh
Farm

Riversmede

Spath
Farm

Stramshall

Existing Quarry Access

Spath

Keystone
House

Cottonmill
Farm

Eaton 
Wood

Eaton Hall
Farm

Derbyshire County

Uttoxeter

Leasowes
Farm

Sidford
Wood

Uttoxeter Quarry 

Tollgate
Cottage

Noah’s Ark 

Car Parking/Offices 
& Weighbridge

Existing Plant Site

Proposed Wash 
Plant Location

.
.

.

Proposed Wash Plant Location.

Existing Plant Site.

Car Parking/
Offices & Weighbridge .

P
age 85




	Agenda
	 Please see attached notes
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 9 June 2022
	4(a) Application by Aggregate Industries UK Ltd at Uttoxeter Quarry, Spath, Uttoxeter - SCC/21/0025/Full-ES
	Local Member
	Minerals County Matter
	Application No (District):  SCC/21/0025/FULL-ES (East Staffordshire)
	Applicant: Aggregate Industries UK Limited
	Description Northern extension to Uttoxeter Quarry for the winning and working of sand and gravel with restoration to agriculture, water-based recreation and nature conservation, with the continued use of existing access, site offices, processing plan...
	Location: Uttoxeter Quarry, Spath, Uttoxeter, Staffordshire, ST14 5AP
	Background/ Introduction
	Site and Surroundings
	Summary of Proposals
	Winning and working of 0.99 million tonnes of sand and gravel
	Restoration of the extension area

	The Applicant’s Case
	Relevant Planning History
	Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA)
	Findings of Consultations
	Internal
	External

	Publicity and Representations
	The development plan policies (and proposals) and the other material planning considerations relevant to this decision
	Observations
	Mineral planning policy and other material planning considerations
	Mineral Local Plan development considerations
	Veteran Tree
	Restoration Progress
	Flood Risk

	Other matters raised by consultees and in representations
	Use of straw bales
	Other Restoration Issues

	Need for a Section 106 Legal Agreement

	Overall Conclusion
	Recommendation
	Appendix 1: Summary of the findings of the Environmental Statement
	Section 1 – Introduction
	Section 2 – Site Appraisal
	Section 3 – Description of Development
	Section 4 – Planning Policy Context
	Section 5 – Environmental Impact Assessment
	Section 6 – Alternatives
	Section 7 – Transport
	Section 8 – Nature Conservation and Ecology
	Section 9 – Landscape and Visual
	Section 10 – Noise
	Section 11 – Air Quality and Dust
	Section 12 – Water Resources and Flood Risk
	Section 13 – Cultural Heritage
	Section 14 – Soil Resources and Agricultural Land
	Section 15 – Public Rights of Way
	Section 16 – Climate Change
	Section 17 – Socio Economic Considerations
	Section 18 – Cumulative Impact Assessment
	Section 19 – Conclusions
	Further Information – Introduction
	Further Information – Ecology
	Further Information – Hydrology (Flood Risk)

	Appendix 2: The development plan policies (and proposals) and the other material planning considerations, relevant to this decision
	The development plan policies and proposals
	The other material planning considerations


	Planning committee report plan 1 - SCC-21-0025-FULL-ES - Uttoxeter Quarry
	Slide Number 1

	Planning committee report plan 2 - SCC-21-0025-FULL-ES - Uttoxeter Quarry
	Planning Committee Report Plan 3 - SCC-21-0025-FULL-ES - Uttoxeter Quarry
	Slide Number 1


	4(b) Application by Aggregate Industries UK Ltd at Uttoxeter Quarry, Spath, Uttoxeter - SCC/21/0047/FULL-ES
	Local Member
	Minerals County Matter
	Application No (District):  SCC/21/0047/FULL-ES (East Staffordshire)
	Applicant: Aggregate Industries UK Ltd
	Location: Uttoxeter Quarry, Spath, Uttoxeter, Staffordshire, ST14 5AP
	Background/ Introduction
	Site and Surroundings
	Summary of Proposals

	The Applicant’s Case
	Relevant Planning History
	Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA)
	Findings of Consultations
	Internal
	External

	Publicity and Representations
	The development plan policies (and proposals) and the other material planning considerations relevant to this decision
	41. Appendix 3 lists the development plan policies (and proposals) and the other material planning considerations, relevant to this decision.

	Observations
	Minerals and waste planning policy considerations and other material planning considerations
	Maximising the best use of mineral resources
	Ancillary development
	Site-specific development plan policy considerations and other matters raised by consultees and in representations

	Need for a Section 106 Legal Agreement
	Overall Conclusion
	Recommendation
	Appendix 1 – Relevant Planning History
	Appendix 2: Summary of the findings of the Environmental Statement
	Section 1 – Introduction
	Section 2 – Site Appraisal
	Section 3 – Description of Development
	Section 4 – Planning Policy Context
	Section 5 – Environmental Impact Assessment
	Section 6 – Alternatives
	Further Information – Introduction

	Appendix 3 - The development plan policies (and proposals) and the other material planning considerations, relevant to this decision
	The development plan policies and proposals
	The other material planning considerations


	Planning Committee Report Plan - SCC-21-0047-FULL-ES - Uttoxeter Quarry
	Slide Number 1



